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This versión of our report Is a tree translation of the original, which was prepared in Spanish. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation ¡s an accurate representation ofthe original. However,

in all matters of ¡nterpretatíon of information, views oropinions, the original language versión ofour
report takes precedence over this translation

Independent auditor/s report on the annual accounts

To the shareholders of Intermoney Valores, Sociedad de Valores, S.A.

Opinión

We have audited the annual accounts of Intermoney Valores, Sociedad de Valores, S.A. (the
Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2019, and the income statement,
statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and related notes for the year then ended.

In our opinión, the accompanying annual accounts present fairly, in all material respects, the equity
and financia! position ofthe Company as at December 31, 2019, as well as its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework (as identified in note 2 ofthe notes to the annual accounts), and in particular, with the
accounting principies and criteria included therein

Basis for opinión

We conducted our audit in accordance with legislation governing the audit practice in Spain. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit ofthe annual accounts section of our report.

We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those
relating to independence, that are relevant to our audit ofthe annual accounts in Spain, in accordance
with tegislation governing the audit practice. In this regard, we have not rendered services other than
those relating to the audit ofthe accounts, and situations or circumstances have not arisen that, in
accordance with the provisions ofthe aforementioned legislation, have affected our necessary
independence such that it has been compromised.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
forour opinión.

IVIost relevant aspects ofthe audit

The most relevant aspects ofthe audit are those that, in our professional judgment, were considered
to be the most significant risks of material misstatement in our audit of the annual accounts of the
current periud. These risks were addressed in the context of our audit of the annual accounts as a
whole, and in forming our opinión thereon, and we do not provide a sepárate opinión on these risks.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S. L., Torre PwC, P° de la Castellana 259 B, 28046 Madrid, España
TeL: +34 gis 684 400 / +34 902 021 iii, Fax: -1-34 915 685 400, www.pwc. es

R. M. Madrid, hoja 87. 250-1 , folio 75, tomo 9. 267, libro 8. 054, sección 3a
Inscrita en el R.O.A.C. con el número S0242 -CIF: B-79 031290
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Recognition of income from brokerage
commissions

The recording of brokerage commissions for
the purchase and sale offinancial instruments
is the Company's main source of ¡ncome.

The processing of equity orders is especially
relevant both in foreign markets and in national
secondary markets.

The ¡ntermediation process carried out by the
Company is highly automated, involving
different computer applications and different
departments.

Likewise, as detailed in Note 1 of the report,
the Company provides various financial
advisory services, as well as asset placement
and emission assurance.

We consider the recognition of income from
brokerage commissions to be a relevant
aspect of the audit due to the
representativeness of the balance of the
heading on the profit and loss account.

See Note 19 ofthe Annual Accounts as of
December31, 2019.

Ourwork has focused on the analysis, evaiuation
and verification of ¡nternal control, as well as on
detailed tests.

Regarding the internai controi system, we have
proceeded to understand the intermediation
process ofthe main types offlnancial operations
with which the Company works.

Additionally, we have carried out detailed tests
consisting of:

Confirmation of the balances held in cash
accounts in flnancial institutions and
verification ofthe corresponding bank
reconciliations.

Verification of settlement for a sample of
invoices issued.

Testing the income recorded by the
advisory services by reviewing a sample of
operations.

Re-execution ofthe calculation of
provisions for insolvency of those clients
that present defaults.

Verification of compliance with the
maximum rates detailed in the rate included
on the CNMV website in the case of retail
clients.

Ourwork also included checking the
absence of unusual entries on the
accounting accounts in which this income is
recorded.

No differences, above a reasonable range, have
been identified in the tests described above
regarding the recognition of income from
commissions ofthe Company.
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Revenue recognition from Matched Principal
operations

As indicated in Note 1 ofthe report, the
Company's activity focuses, among others, on
trading on its own account.

The process of intermediation of fixed-income
financia! instruments carried out by the
Company ¡s performedt through Matched
Principal process, which consists ofthe
purchase of securities for its own account once
it has been agreed to sell them to a third party.

This intermediation process is highly
automated, involving different IT applications
and different departments.

We focus on the recognition of income from
the main Matched transaction due to its
significance in the income statement and the
high volume of transactions carried out by the
Company during the year.

See Notes 6 and 21 of the Annual Accounts as
of December 31, 2019.

Ourwork has focused on the analysis, evaluation
and verification of internal control, as well as on
detailed tests.

Regarding the internal control system, we have
proceeded to understand the process of
intermediation offixed incomeforown account.

Additionally, we have carried out detaiíed tests
consisting of:

Testing the correct accounting record of
income for a sample of transactions,
verifying their existence, accuracy and
accrual.

Testing the correct settlement for a sample
of purchase and sale operations,
respectively.

Our work also included checking the
absence of unusual entries on the
accounting accounts in which this income is
recorded.

No differences, above a reasonable range, have
been identified in the tests described above
regarding the recognition of income from financial
operations on the Company's own account.

Other information: Management repori:

Other information comprises onlythe management reportforthe 2019financial year, the formulation
ofwhich is the responsibility ofthe Company's directors and does notform an integral part ofthe
annual accounts.

Our audit opinión on the annual accounts does not cover the management report. Our responsibility
regarding the management report, in accordance with iegislation governing the audit practice, is to
evalúate and report on the consistency between the management report and the annual accounts as a
result of our knowiedge ofthe Company obtained during the audit of the aforementioned financial
statements, ano does not inciude information different to that obtained as evidence during our audit.
Likewise, our responsibility is to evalúate and report on whether the content and presentation of the
management report is in accordance with applicable regulations. !f, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that material misstatements exist, we are required to report that fact.

On the basis ofthe work performed, as described in the previous paragraph, the information contained
in the management report is consistent with that contained in the annual accounts for the 2019
financial year, and its content and presentation are in accordance with the applicable regulations.
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Responsibiilty oí the dirscíors fo¡- the annual accounts

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation ofthe accompanying annual accounts,
such that they fairly present the equity, financial position and financial performance of ABC, S.A., in
accordance with the financial reporting framework applicable to the entity in Spain, and for such
interna! control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Company's directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continué as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no reaiistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of ths annual accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinión.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with legislation governing the audit practice in Spain will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese annual accounts.

As part of an audit in accordance with legislation governing the audit practice in Spain, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinión. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higherthan for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinión on the effectiveness ofthe Company's internal control.

. Evalúate the appropriateness of accounting poiicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estímales and related disclosures made by the Company's directors.

. Conciude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continué as a
going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the reiated disclosures in the annua! accounts or, ifsuch
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinión. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our audiíor's report. hlowever, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continué as a going concern.

. Evalúate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represen! the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Company's directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

From the significant risks communicated with the Company's directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and are,
therefore, considered to be the most signifícant risks.

We describe these risks in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S. L. (S0242)

WlTiAí. LEB FQR PURPOSES
OF IDENTIFICATION

Pf?!CEWArER«OUSECCC;.PERS AUDiTORES, SI
Javier Pato Blázquez (22313)

April16, 2020



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

Assets

Treasury (Note5)

Trading Portfolio (Note 6)
Debtsecurities

Equityinstruments
Derivatives

Otherfinancialassets

Pro notes to occounts: Lent or under guarantee

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Debtsecurities

Other equity instruments
Otherfinantíal assets

Pro notes to occounts: Lent or under guarantee

Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt securities

Equity instruments (Note 6)
Pro notes to accounts: Lent or untíer guarantee

Loans and receivables

Loans and advancesto financial intermediarles (Note 7)
Loans and advancesto customers (Note 8)
Otherfinancial assets

Held-to-maturity investments
Pro notes to accounts: Lent or under guarantee

Hedging derivatives

Non-current assets held for sale

Debtsecurities

Equityinstruments
Tangible assets
Other

2019 2018(*)

2540552. 74

9 231124.09
7 287 954.46
1 943 169.63

1 600.00

1 600.00

13 444 548.45
6802020.28
6642528.17

305.00

305.00

2 248 547.76

4 638 260. 21
2 338 909. 81
2 299 350.40

1 200.00

1 200.00

28 940 045. 44

20 864 061.71
8075983.73

305.00

305.00

Investments

Group entities
Jointly-controlled entities
Associates

Insurance contracts linked to pensions

Tangible assets (Note 9)
Forown use

Investment properties

Intangible assets (Note 10)

Goodwlll

Other Intangible assets

Taxassets

Current (Note 8;
Deferred

Otherassets (Note 8)

Totalassets

181 300. 93
181300. 93

35 636.33

35636.33

23 400. 24
23400.24

122499.89

238 650. 15
238650. 15

81 506.27

81506.27

23 400.24
23 400. 24

170 802.79

25 580 967.67 36 342 717.86

(*)They are presented, only and exclusively, for comparative purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

Liabititiesandequity

Trading portfolio
Other flnancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Other flnancial liabilities at fair value through equity
Financial liabilitiesatamortised cost

Financia! intermediaries debts (Note 11)

Customerdebts(Notell)
Loans and subordinated liabilities
Otherflnandal liabilities

Hedging derivatives

Liabilities assoclated with non-current assets held for sale

Provisions

Provisions for pensions and similar obligatlons
Provislons for taxes and other legal contingent
Otherprovisions (Note 12)

Tax liabilities

Current (Note 15)
Deferred

Other liabilities (Note 12)

Total liabilities

Equity (own funds) (Note 13)

Capital
Registered
Less: Capital nondemanded

Share Premium

Reserves

Other equity instruments
Less: Treasury s/iares

Results from previous years

Remaining

Proflt or loss for the period (Notes 13 and 14)
Less: Dividends and remuneration (Notes 13 and 14)

Valuation adjustments

Available-for-sale financial assets

Cash-fíow Hedges
Hetíges of net investments in foreign operations
Exchange differences
Othervaluation adjustmenís

Grants, donations and legacy

Total liabtlities and equity

2019 201S(*

6 789 479. 94
5 269 743. 71
1519736. 23

1149 453. 29

7 938 933. 23

17 642 034.44

15 000 000.00
15 000 000. 00

3 557 649.41

(915 614. 97)

15 825 99S.39
6 305 387.04
9520611.35

30 000.00

30 000.00

4397.60
4397. 60

1 924 672. 52

17 785 068.51

18 557 649. 35

15 000 000. 00
15 000 000.00

5 807 394. 29

0. 17
0. 17

(2 249 745. 11)

25 580 967.67 36 342 717.86

*)They are presented, only and exclusively, for comparative purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

Off-Balance-Sheet

Bank and granted guarantees (Note 16)
Other contingent liabilities
Flnanclal assetforward purchase commitments

Own values assigned as lendings
Payouts engaged by issues ensured
Own securities orders pending execution (Note 16)
Financial derivatives (Note 16)
Other risks accounts

Total risk and commitment accounts

Security deposits (Note 16)
Managed portfolios (Note 16)
Other off-balance sheet Ítems (Note 16)

Total other off-balance sheet accounts

2019

41159G6. 10

1180643.18

5 296 609.28

4249351475.81
22 801 206. 42
13278856. 21

2018(*

4 059 196. 88

1468875.56

5 528 072.44

3 903 325 038.48
19051183.51
12 170 176. 25

4 285 431 538.44 3 934 546 398.24

*)They are prcsented, only and cxclusively, for comparative purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S. A.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

2019 2018

Interest and similar incomes

interest expenses and similar charges

Interest margin (Note 18)

Return on equity instruments
Fees and commissions incomes (Note 19)
Fees and commissions expenses (Note 20)

Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities (net)

Heldfortrading(Note21)
Otherfinancial instruments at fairvaluethrough profitor loss
Financial instruments notvalued atfairvaiue through profít ana loss
Others

Foreign currencies differences (net)

Other operating incomes

Other operating charges (Note 23)

Gross margin

Personnel expenses (Note 22)
Other admlnistrative expenses (Note 23)
Depreclatlon and amortizations (Notes 9 and 10)
Provisioning expenses (net)

Impairment losses (net)

Loans and receivables (Note 7)

Otherfínancial instruments notvalued atfairvalue through profit and loss

Operating incomes or expenses

Impairment losses from other assets (net)
Tangible assets ¡Note 9)
Intangible assets
Other

Gains / (Losses) on assets dropped not classified as ROÍ current on sales
Loss difference on comblnatlons of businesses

Profits / (Losses) from non-current asset held for sales not classified as

interrupted operations

Profit or loss before income tax

lncometax(Note 15)

Profit or loss for the period

Earnings per share - Basic
Earnings pershare - Diluted

107 232. 12
5C 403.73)

56 828.39

4512346.94
(139d 394. 57)

2491401. 07

2491401.07

461.95)

( 1619. 00)

5 664 100.88

(4 373 982.04)
(2393841. 87)

(105987. 11)

( 6 867.96)
( 6867. 96)

(1 216 578. 10)

(I 216 578.10)

30C 963. 13

( 9156U.97)

(0.91561457)
(0. 915614S7;

101590. 57
62 628.96)

38 961.61

6341516.68
(1 761152.74)

3 079 978.50
3 079 978.50

1 313.61)

( 70 095.20)

7 627 895.24

(6824593. 32)
(3401151.18)
( 24S 827.05)

24 923. 17)
24923. 17)

(2 868 599. 48)

( 66 068. 68)
66 068. 68)

4376. 26

(2930291. 90)

680 546. 79

(2 249 745. 11)

(2. 24374511)
{2. 24974511)

(*)They are presented, only and exclusively, for comparative purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

a) Statement of recognised income and expense

2019 2018(*)

Profit or loss for the year (Notes 13 and 14)

Other recognised incomes and expenses

Available-for-saEe financia! asseís

Gains / (Losses) by measure
Amountstransferredtoprofitand lossaccount
Otherreclassifications

Cash flow hedge

Gains / (Losses) by measure
Amountstransferred to profit and loss account
Amountstransferred to hedge amounts' initial
Other redassifications

Netforeign (intemational) business investments Hedge
Gains / (Losses) by measure
Amounts transferred to profit and loss account
Other reclassifications

Exchange differences

Gains / (Losses) by measure
Amounts transferred to profit and loss account
Other reclassifications

Non-current assets held for sale

Gains / (Losses) by measure
Amountstransferred to profit and loss account
Otherreclassifications

On artuarial gains and losses

Other recognised incomes and expenses

Incometax

Total recognised incomes and expenses

(915 614.97) (2 249 745. 11)

(915 614.97) (2 249 745. 11)

(*)They are presented, anly and exclusively, for comparative purposcs



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUIT/ FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

b) Total statement of chcinges in equity

Balance at 2017 year end (.)

Adjustments by corrertions

Adjusted balance, beginning 2018 (*)

Total recognised incomes and expenses

Other movements in equity

Increase ofother equity instruments
Decrease of other equity instruments

Dividend payment/shareholders' remuneration

Transfer between equity amounts

Other increase / (decrease) in equity

Balance at 2018 year end (*)

Adjustments by correctlons

Adjusted balance, beginnlng 2019

Total recognised incomes and expenses

Other movements in equity
increase ofother equity instruments

Decrease of other equity instruments

Dividend payment/shareholders' remuneration
Transfer between equity amounts
Other increase / (decrease) in equity

Balance at 2019 year end

Share Capital

15 000 000.00

15 000 000. 00

15 000 000.00

15 000 000.00

Reserves

Results from

Interim previous Profit or loss Value

dividend _years for the year Total Equity adjustment Total net equity

5 742 485.80 : 875 000. 00) 939 908.49 20 807 394.29

5 742 485.80 : 875 000. 00) 939 908.49 20 807 394.29

(2249745. 11) (2249745. 11)

64 908.49 0. 17

875000.00
( 64 908. 49)
( 875000.00)

0. 17

5 807 394.29 0.17 (2249745.11) 18557649.35

5 807 394. 29 0. 17 (2249745. 11)

( 915614.97)

18 557 649.35

( 915614. 97)

15000000. 00

(2 249 744.88)

3 557 649.41

(0. 17) 2249745. 11 0.06

( 915614.97) 17642034.44

20 807 394.29

20 807 394.29

(2249745. 11)

0. 17

18 557 649.35

18 557 649. 35

( 915614.97)

0.06

17 642 034. 44

(*)They are presented, only and exclusively, for comparativc purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Expressed in Euros)

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities (+/-)

Profit or loss for the year(+/-) (Notes 13 and 14)

Adjustment to achieve cash flow from operating activities(+/-)

Depreciation and amortization (Note 9 and 10)

Losses (net) by assets impairment (+/-) (Note 9)

ProviSioning risk expense (net)(+/-) (Note 7)

Profit / Losses by sales of non-financial assets (+/-)
Proflt/Losses by sales ofinterest in subsidiaries (+/-)
Other Ítems (+/-)

Adjusted result (+/.)

Net increase (decrease) operating assets (+/-)

Loans and receivables (+/-) (Notes 7 and 8)
Held for Trading (+/-) (Note 6)
Otherflnancial assetsatfairvaluethrough profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets (+/-) (Note 6)
Other operating assets (+/-)

Net increase (decrease) operating liabilities (+/)

Amortised costfinancial liabilities (+/-) (Note 11)
Heldfortrading(+/-)

Otherfinancial liabilities atfairvaluethrough profit or loss (+/-)
Other operating liabilities (+/-)
Col;ections / payments for income tax (+/-}

Cash flows from financing activities (+/-)

Payments (-)

Held-to-maturityinvestments (-)
Shares (-)
Tangible assets;-) (Note 9)

Intangible assets (-) (Note 10)
Otherbusiness' units ¡-)
Non-current assets ar. d sales' llabilities i-)

Other payments related to investment activities (-¡

(11921305.78)

( 915614.97)

(575 871. 30)
105 987. 11

6867. 96

623 772. 18)
64 954. 19)

1491486.27)

( 1264231.03)
3 279 929.95

( 4592863.88)

400. 00
48 302. 90

( 9 165 588.48)
( 9036518.45)

809 616.82)
680 546.79

2767.95)

2767.95)

2 767.95)

4 615 824. 95

2 249 745. 11)

375 655.85
245 827.05
66 068.68
24 923. 17

38836.95

1 874 089. 26)

65299542. 18

62 152 085. 48
2320623.63

826 833,07

(58 809 627.97)
(57648639. 53)

( 1461811.89)
300 823. 45

( 16 908. 89)

16 908.89)

( 13 488.23)
( 3 420.66)

(*)Tliey are presenled, only and exclusive]}', for comparative purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Expressed in Euros)

2019 2018(*)

Collections (+)

Held-to-maturityinvestmcRts (+)

Shares (+}

Tangible assets;+)

Intangible assets (+)

Other business unlts (+)

Non-current assets and sales liabilities (+)

Other collections related ío investment activities (+)

Cash flows from financing activities (+/-)

Payments (-)

Equity instruments amortizations (-)
Own equity instruments purchased (-)

Return and amortizations of bcnds and others marketabie securities (-)

Return and amortization ofsubordinated liabilities, loans and

otherfinances received (-)

Collections (+)

Equity instruments issues (+)
Issue and dlsposal own equity instruments (+)
Bonds and other marketable securities issue (+)

Issue ofsubordinated liabilities, loansand otherfinances (+)

Dividends paid and other equity instruments remuneration (-)

Effect ofexchange rate fluctuations in cash or cash equivalents (+/-)

Net increase/decrease in cash or cash equivafents

Cash orcash equivalents at the beginning oftheyear (+/-)(Note 5)
Cash orcash equivalents at the end ofthe year (+/-)(Note 5)

461. 95 1313.61

(11923611.78) 4 600 229. 67

18 470 155. 35
6546543. 57

13 869 925. 68
18 470 155.35

(*)They are prcsented, only and exclusively, for comparative purposes



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Expressed in Euros)

1. Activity ana information of a general nature

Intermoney Valores, Sociedad de Valores, S.A. (hereinafter, "the Company") was estabtished on
May 14, 1998, under the denomination of Corretaje Multi-Bolsa, Agencia de Valores y Bolsa, S.A.,
changing to a Sscurities Company in the year 2000.

On June 5, 2000, the Ministry of Finance authorised the Company to take the form of a Securities
Company ("Sociedad de Valores"), and is in the Spanish Stock Exchange Commission (hereinafter
CNMV) registrywith registry number 169.

The Company has its registered office in Madrid, Calle Príncipe de Vergara, no 131, 3rd floor.

The company is authorized by CNMV to provide services in terms of his activities program:

Investment Services:

. Receiving ana transmitting orders on clients in relation to one or more financial
instruments.

. Execution of these orders on behalf of clients.

. Dealingon own account.

. Investment portfolio management.

. Placing of financial instruments without a firm commitment basis.

. Underwriting of financial instruments or placing of financial instruments on a firm
cnmmitment basis.

. Investmentadvice.

Additional services:

. Custodyand administratíon on behalfofclientsofthefinancial instruments.

. Advising companies regarding capital structures, industrial strategies and similar
matters, as well as advisory services regarding mergers and acquisitions.

. Services related to underwriting of issuing operations.



. Preparation of investment reports and financial analysis or any other form of general
recommendation related to operations through financial instruments.

. Currency exchange services, whenever they are related to investment services.

Secondarv activities:

. Receivingandtransmission oforders bythird partiesand executionofthatordersover
bank deposits, insurance and capitalization products, and plans and pensión funds, ana
cash !oans.

. Advice on savings and capitalization insurance products, and plans and pensión funds,
and cash loans.

. Commercialization of Collective Investment Institutions and plans and pensión funds.

. Reception ana transmission ofclient orders in relation to real estáte assets.

On January 4, 2001, the General Direction for Treasury and Financial Policy granted the Company
the status of Accountholder and Management Company with full capacity in the Public Debt
market.

The Securities Companies have established the foundations oftheir legal system in the foilowing
legislation:

. Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015, of 23 October, approving the consolidated text of the
Securities Market Law.

. Royal Decree 2017/2008, of February 15, on the legal regime of investment services
companies and other entities providing investment services and amending the Regulation of
Law 35/2003, November, of Collective investment institutions, approved by Royal Decree
1309/2005, of November 4.

Additionally, these companies are affected by various provisions that, among others, regúlate the
following aspects:

. They must take the form of public limited liabiiity companies ("Sociedad Anónima"), and be
exclusively engaged in the activities rslating to investment service corripanies.

. They must have a minimum share capital of 2, 000 thousand euros.

. They should comply with the minimum capital, liquidity and solvency requirements, in
accordance with current legislation. On 28 June 2014 was published Circular 2/2014, 23 June
2014 of the CNMV on the exercising of sundry regulatory solvency options for investment
service companies and their consolidable groups in accordance with Regulation (EU)
575/2013 ofthe European Parliament on the prudential requirements applicable to credit
institutions and investment companies, and repealing previous legislation.



Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 includes reserved prudential information, which investment
firms should send ad hoc to the CNMV This information is the same information required
undertheframeworkofthe single marketsince itisthe resultofthe processofconvergence
between the member states ofthe European Unión.

At 31 December 2019, the Company's solvency ratio stands at 52. 77% (44. 99% at 31
December 2018), meaning that ¡t has a surplus of Euros 14, 937 thousand (Euros 15, 190
thousand at 31 December 2018). This ratio corresponds in its entirety to "ordinary level 1
capital".

They mustjoin an Investment Guarantee Fund (called Sociedad Gestora del Fondo General
de Garantía de Inversiones, S. A. ) underthe terms established by Royal Decree 948/2001, a
fund which, in general terms, guarantees that all investors are able to recover the monetary
value of their creditor position against the Company, up to a quantitative ¡imit of 100,000
euros.

. They may only obtain financing from the financial institutions registered forthis purpose with
the CNMV, the Bank of Spain or the General Directorate for Insurance or in similar registers
kept within other European Unión countries, or from other sources only in the case of-

Issuesofshares.

Subordinated financing.
Issue of listed securities on an official secondary market.
Instrumental and transitional accounts opened for customers with respect to the
execution oftransactions carried out on their behalf.

a) Relevant events

There have been no relevant events during 2019.

b) Drawing update

On 12 March 2020 the Company's Board of Directors prepared the annual accounts and Directors'
report for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Atthe dateofpreparation ofthese annual accounts, the membersofthe Board of Directors are:

Mr. Javier de la Parte Rodríguez
Mr. Emanuei Guilherme Louro da Siiva

Mrs. Beatriz Senís Gilmartín

Chairman

Vicepresident
Memberofthe Board



c) Staff

By categories, the average number of staff employed by the Group during the years 2019 and 2018
is as follows:

2019 2018
Males Females

Management

Staff

1

25

26

21

21

Tota! Males Females

1

46

47

2

38

40

23

23

Total

2

61

63

During the years 2019 and 2018, there have not been employees with a disability equal orgreater
than 33%.

d) Branches and Representatives

On 15 November 2011, the CNMV was notified of the opening by the Company of a branch in
Portugal, which commenced its activities on 1 July 2012. The Company's branch was domiciled at
Avenida da República, no 25, 5^ floor, Escritorio B, travesía de Nossa Senhora de Fátima, concelho
de Lisboa, Portugal.

On November27, 2018, the Board ofDirectorsoftheCompanyagreedtoceasetheactivityofsaid
branch and the termination and closure with effect December 31, 2018, resulting a loss before taxes
in the yearfor a total amount of 2, 608, 923. 20 euros, recorded in the corresponding headings ofthe
profit ana loss account.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has no representatives.

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements

a) Fair presentation

The accompanying annual accounts, prepared by the Administrators of the Company, were
elaborated based on the accounting records and all current mercantile legislation and rules
established in the Circular 7/2008, of November 26, on accounting rules, financial statements ana
reserved information statements of Investment Services Companies, Collective Investment
Institutions Management Companies ana Venture Capital Firms Management Entities, ¡ssued by
the CNMV, which was published in the B. O. E. (Official Gszette) on December 29, 2008, with íhe aim
of showing a true image of its equity, of its financial situation, as at 31 December 2018 and the
results of its operations, the changes in equity and its cash flows corresponding for the year then
ended.

These annual accounts were prepared in euros.



b) Non-mandatorv accounting principies

The Company has not applied any non-mandatory accounting principies thought the years ending
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

There are no accounting principies, rules or obligatory valuation criteria, with signifícant effect, that
have not been applied in the preparation thereof Note 3 contains a summary ofthe most signifícant
accounting principies ana rules and valuation criteria applied to these financial statements, the
preparation of which is the responsibility of the Administrators of the Company.

c) Judgements and estimates

Judgements or estimates that may have a significant effect on the annual accounts have not been
included in their preparation.

d) Critical measurement issues and estimates of uncertainty

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there are no uncertainties deriving from significant risks that
may entail a material change in the value of assets or liabilities in the following year

e) Changes in accounting estimates

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there are no changes in accounting estimates that may involve
a material change in the value of assets ana liabilities within the next year.

f) Consolidation

The Company forms part of the Group CIMD, whose parent company is Corretaje e Información
Monetaria y de Divisas, S.A. (hereinafter CIMD, S.A. ), set up in Madrid and which owns at 31
December 2019 and 2018, 99.99% ofthe shares ofthe Company, which will prepare its consolidated
financia! statements at 27 March 2019. Said consolidated financial statements will be filed with the
Madrid Mercantile Registry once they have been approved.

As of 2008, the parent company ofthe Group prepares its fínancial statements in accordance with
the Circular 7/2008, of November 26, on accounting rules, ofthe CNMV, financial statements and
reserved information statements of Investment Services Companies, Collective Investment
Institutions Managemení Companies and Veníure Capital Firms Managemení Entities ¡bsued and
published in the B. O. E. (Official Gazette) of29 December 2008.

g) Comparativenessofinformation

In addition to the figures for 2019, for comparative purposes the Company directors present each
ítem in the balance sheet, income statement, statement ofchanges in equity and statement ofcash
flows with those for the previous year



3. Accounting criteria

The most sígnificant accounting principies and valuation rules applied when preparing the fínancial
statements are those set out below

a) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the balance sheet as follows:

i) Trading Portfolio

This heading includes financial assets that have been acquired for short-term sale and are
part of a portfolio of financia! instruments ¡dentified and managed jointly, with respect to
which recent actions have been carried out in arder to obtain short-term gains. Alternatively,
they are derivative instruments not designated as accounting hedges.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted on an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months from the date of the balance sheet. These are
classifíed as non-current assets.

Financial assets are initially carried at fair value, including directly attributable transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Accrued interest is recognised at
the effective interest rate, which is the discount rate that brings the instrumenfs carrying
amount into line with all estimated cash flows to maturity.

Nonetheless, trade receivables maturing in less than one year are carried at the amount
receivable less any necessary value adjustments, 25% being appropriated for invoices 6
months past due, 50% for invoices 12 months past due, 75% for invoices 18 months past due
and 100% for invoices over 24 months past due.

At least at the year end, in cases where collection is evidently impossible or in the event of
the suspensión of payment, the necessary value adjustments are made for impairment and
provisión is made for 100% ofthe receivable irrespective ofthe time that has elapsed.

ii) Other financial assets at fair value through profít or loss

This heading includes financial assets that, while not forming part ofthe trading portfolio, are
considered hybrid fínancial assets and are measured in their entirety at fair value, aiso
records assets which are managed jointly with liabilities under insurance contracts measured
at fair value or through financia! derivatives that aim to ensure ana result in a signifícant
decrease in exposure to variations in fair value or which are managed jointly with fínancial
liabilities and derivatives in order to significantly reduce overall exposure to the interest rate
risk.

As at 31 December2019 and 2018 the Company has no fínancial instruments on this category.





iii) Available-for-sale fínancial assets

Corresponds to debt securities not classifíed as held-to-maturity investments, such as other
fínancial assets at fair value profit or loss, loans and receivables, financia! assets hela for
trading equity instruments in companies that are not dependent or jointly-controlled
companiesorassociatesand have notbeen inciuded inthecategoriesoffinancialassetsheld
fortrading, other non-currentassets held for sale and otherassetsatfairvaluethrough profit
or loss.

IV) Loans and receivables

They are fínancial assets not derivatives, with cash flows ofa fixed or determinable amounts,
in which all the disbursement made by the Company will be substantiaily recovered,
excluding reasons imputable to debtor's insolvency, which will not be valued at fair value,
and the Company will necessarily have the intention of holding until maturity,

A financial asset which is negotiated on an active market, such as a debt instrument on a
quoted debt, does not comply with the requisites to be classified in this category. Nor does a
participation acquired in a group of assets that are not credit or accounts receivable, such as
a participation in an investmentfund.

v) Non currentassets-held for sale

Held-to-maturity financia! assets are debí securities with fixed maturities and determinable
cash flows in relation to which the Company has the intention and ability to hold to maturity,
by having, basically, the financial ability to do so, or because they have access to related
fínancing.

vi) Shares

Shares in subsidiarles, jointly-controlled entities ana associates are stated at cosí and are
adjusted for any impairment losses ifthere is evidence. For the calculation of impairment
losses the Entity compares the recoverable value (this being the higher of fair value less
necessary costs to sell and value in use) with its carrying value.

Impairment losses, as well as value recoveries which arise through this valuation, are
recognizcd immediately inthe Ei"tity's income statement.

As dt 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Cumpany has no financia instruments in this
portfolio.

Accounting and measurement offinancial assets

These financial assets are initially stated at fairvalue, which is normally the transaction price, unless
there Es evidence to the contrary. At the end of each reporting period they are measured on the
basis ofthe foliowing criteria:



Financialassetswillbevaluedattheirfairvalueexceptforloansand receivables, investments
heíd to maturity, equity instruments when their fair value cannot be determined in
suffEciently objective manner, subsidiaries companies, multi-group and associated
companies and financias derivatives that have as a subjacent asset these equity instruments
and are settled through the surrender of the same.

The fairvalue ofa fínancial asset is understood to be the amount at which it may be delivered
between duly informed interested parties in an arm's length transaction. The best evidence
of fair value is the quote on an active market that is an organized, transparent and deep
market.

Where there is no market price for a specific fínancial asset, fair value is estimated on the
basis ofthe value of recent transactions involving analogous instruments and, alternatively,
using sufficiently verified valuation models. Similarly, the specifíc characteristics of the asset
to be measured are taken into account and in particular, the different types of risks
associated with the fínancial asset. Nonetheless, the own limitations ofthe measurement
models developed ana the possible inaccuracies in the assumptions required by these
models may mean that the fair value thus estimated of a financial asset does not exactly
agree with the price at which it could be bought or sola at the measurement date.

Thefairvalueofthefinancial derivatives listed on an active marketisthe dailyquoted price.
Iffor exceptional reasons, it is not possible to establish the price on a given date, methods
similar to those employed to value OTC financial derivatives are used. The fair value of OTC
financial derivatives is the sum of the future cash flows originating in the instrument and
discounted at the valuation date using methods recognised by fínancial markets.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost,
determined using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is understood to refer
to the acquisition cost ofa financial asset, adjusted by repayments ofthe principal and the
part allocated to the income statement, using the effective interest rate method, of the
difference between the initiai cosí and the relevant repayment value at maturity, less any
decline in value owing to impairment recognised directly as a decrease in the amount ofthe
asset or through a value adjustment account. In the event that such ítems are hedged
through fair value hedges, changes in fair value related to the risk or risks hedged through
such hedges are reflected.

The sffective interest rate is the discount rate íhat brings the value of a financial instrument
exactly in line with the estimated cash flows over the instrumenfs expected iife, on the basis
of the relevant contractual conditions, such as early repayi nent options, not taking into

account future losses on credit exposure.

For fíxed rate financial instruments, the effective interest rate agrees with the contractual
¡nterest rate set at the time of their acquisition, increased, where appropriate, by the
commissions that, because oftheir nature, may be likened to an interest rate. For variable
interest fínancial instruments, the effective interest rate agrees with the current rate of
return on all ítems through to the first review ofthe reference interest rate set to take place.



Variations in the carrying value offinancial assets are generally reflected with a balancing entry in
the income statement and a distinction ¡s made between those resulting from the accrual of
interest and similar, that are carried under interest and similar income, and those due to other
reasons, that are carried at the net amount involved, under Gains/losses on fínancial transactions
in the income statement.

Nonetheless, changes in the carrying value of the instruments ¡ncluded in Available-for-sale
financial assets are provisionally carried under Equity Measurement Adjusments unless they result
from exchange differences. The amounts included in Valuation adjustments continué to form part
of Equity until the related asset is written offthe balance sheet, at which time they are written off
againstthe income statement.

Similarly, changes in the carrying value ofthe assets included in Non-current assets held for sale
are reflected against Adjustments for the valuation of equity.

The valuation differences in financial assets designated as hedged ítems and accounting hedging
ítems are recorded having regard to the following criteria:

In fair value hedges the differences arising both in the hedging elements and in the
hedged elements, as regarás the type of risk hedged, are recognized directly in the
profít and loss account.

The valuation differences corresponding to the inefficient part of cash flow hedging
operations and of net ¡nvestments in foreign operations are taken directly to the profit
and loss account.

In cash flow hedges, the valuation differences arising in the effective hedge portion of
the hedged elements are recorded temporarily in the equity valuation adjustments
statement, net of the tax effect.

In hedges of net ¡nvestments in foreign operations, the valuation differences arising in
the effective portion of the hedge elements are recorded temporarily in the equity
valuation adjustments statement, net ofthe tax effect.

In these last two cases, differences in valuation are not recognized as results until the
losses or gains of the hedged ítem are recorded in the profít ana loss account or until
the expiration date ofíhe hedged Ítem.

Fui fairvalue hedges orthe interest rate risk on a portfolio of financia! ¡nstruments,
the gains or losses arising on measuring the hedge are recognised directly in equity
while the gains or losses resuiting from variations in the fair value of the amount
hedged, with respect to the hedged risk, are recognised in the income statement using
the heading changes in fair value ofthe hedged ítem in portfolio hedges of interest
rate risk as a balancing entry.
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In cash f!ow interest rate hedges in a portfolio offinancial instruments, the effective
portion ofthe variation in the value ofthe hedging instrument is recorded temporarily
in the equity valuation adjustments caption, until the forecast transactions take place
and then are recorded in the consolidated income statement. The variation in the

value of the hedging derivatives for the ineffective portion of the hedge is recorded
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Monetary ítems held for sale are recognised at cash value.

Impairment losses

The carrying value offinancial assets is generatly adjusted against the profit and loss accounts when
there is objective evidence that there are impairment losses. This is the case where:

For debt instruments, understood as loans and debt securities, when, following their
initial recognition, there is an event or combined effect ofvarious events which have
a negativo impact on the relevant future cash flows.

For equity instruments, when following their initiat recognition, there is an event or
the combined effect ofvarious events, making it impossible to recover their carrying
value.

As a general rule, the carrying value offinancial instruments due to impairment is adjusted against
theincomestatementforthe period inwhichsuch impairmentarisesandthe recoveryofpreviously
recorded impairment losses, if any, is recognised in the income statement for the period in which
such impairment is eliminated or reduced. When the recovery of any amount is considered remóte
due to the impairment registered, this will be eliminated from the balance sheet, even though the
Company may carry out the necessary actions in order to collect the amount until they have
defínitively extinguished their rights by prescription, condonation or other causes.

For debt instruments measured at amortised cosí, the amount of impairment losses incurred is
equal to the negative difference between their carrying value and the present value ofestimated
future cash flows. In the case of quoted debt instruments the market value may be used, in
substitution of the current value of future cash flows, when this is sufficiently reliable to be
considered as the representative ofthe value that the Company could recover.

Future cash flows estimated for a debt instrument are all íhose amounís, principal and interests,
the Campa nyestimatestoobtainduringthe lifeofthe instrument. This estímate takes intoaccount
all significant information availabie at the date of preparation of the financiai statements
concerning the possible future collection of contractual cash flows. Similarly, the estímate offuture
cash flows from instruments secured by real guaranteed, takes into account the flows that would
be obtained on realisation, less the amount of the necessary costs for their obtainment and
subsequent sale, irrespective ofthe probable enforcement ofthe guarantee.
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In the calculation of the the present value of estimated future cash fíow, the original effective
interest rate ofthe instrument is used as the discount rate, ifthe contractual rate is a fíxed rate.
Alternatively, the effective interest rate at the date to which the fínancial statements refer,
determined in accordance with the contract terms, is used when a variable rate ¡s involved.

Debí instrument portfolios, contingency risks and contingent commitments, no matter who is the
holder, instrumentation or guarantee, will be analysed to determine the credit risk to which the
Company is exposed and to estímate the need for coverage due to impairment of its value. In
preparing the financial statements, the Company classifies its operations in function of their credit
risk analysing, separateiy, the insolvency risk chargable to the client and the country risk to which,
if applicable, they are exposed.

Objective evidence of impairment is individually determined for all significant debí instruments and
individually or collectively for groups of debt instruments which are not individually significant. If a
specifíc instrument cannot be included in any group of assets with similar risk characteristics, it is
analyzed exclusively on an individual basis in arder to determine whether ¡t is impaired and, if
appropriate, to estímate the loss for impairment.

The collective assessment of a group of financial assets to estímate impairment losses is done as
follows:

Debt instruments are included in groups with similar credit risk characteristics, indicative of
debtor capacity to pay all amounts, principal ana interest, in accordance with contractual
terms. The characteristics of credit risk which are taken into account in order to group
together assets are, inter alia, the type of instrument, the debtor's sector of activity,
geographical área ofactivity, type ofguarantee, age ofamounts overdue and any otherfactor
that may be relevant when estimating future cash flows.

The future cash flows of each group of debt instruments is estimated on the basis of
experience of historie losses by the Company for instruments with similar credit risk
characteristics to those ofthe respective group, once the necessary adjustments have been
made to adapt the historie data to the current market conditions.

Impairment losses in each group are the difference between the carrying value of all the
group's debt instruments ana the present value of its estimated future cash flows.

Debt insíruments not valued at fair value with changes in the profít and loss account, contingent
risks and the contingent commitments are classified in function ofthe insolvencv risk imputable to
Ihe client orto the operation, in the following categories: normal risk, substandard risk, doubtful
riskforotherreasonsthanduetothearrearsbytheclientandfailed risk. Fordebt instruments not
classifíed as normal risk the specific coverage for impairment needed is estimated on the basis of
the Company's experience and that of the sector, specifíc coverage necessary for impairment,
bearing in mindthe agingofthe unpaid amounts, theguaranteesgiven ana the economicsituation
of the client and, if applicable, of guarantors. This estímate is made, in general, based upan the
arrears calendar prepared on the basis of the Company's experience and on the information
availabie in the sector.
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Similarly, debt instruments not measured at fair vaiue through the income statement and
contingent risks, irrespective ofthe customer, are analysed to determine the credit risk by reason
ofcountry risk. Country risk is understood asthe risk attached to a customers' residency in a specific
country due to circumstances other than the usual business risk.

The recognition in the income statement of the accrual of ¡nterest on the basis of the contractual

terms is interrupted for all debt instruments dassified individually as impaired and for those for
which impairment losses have been calculated collectively because the amounts involved are more
than three months past due.

Theamountofimpairmentlossesincurred indebtsecuritiesandequityinstrumentsincluded under
Available-for-sale financial assets is equal to the positive difference between theiracquisition costs,
net of any repayment of the principal, and their fair value less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the profít ana loss accounts.

When there is objective evidence that the decline ¡n fair value is attributable to impairment, the
latent losses recognised directly under Equity Measurement adjustments are recorded immediately
in the income statement. If subsequently all or part ofthe impairment losses are recovered, the
amount involved is recognised, in the case of debt securities, in the income statement for the
recovery period, and, in the case of equity instruments, under Equity Measurement Adjustments.

For debt and equity instruments classifíed under non-current assets held for sale, the losses
recorded previously under equity are considered realized and are recognised in the income
statement at the date oftheir classifícation.

Losses due to impairment of capital ¡nstruments valued at their acquisition cost correspond to the
differences between the carrying value and the current value ofthe future cash flows expected,
updated to the profitability rate on the market for other similar securities. Such impairment losses
are recorded in the income statement for the period in which they arise by directly reducing the
cost ofthe fínandal asset. The amount involved may not be recorded except in the event ofa sale.

Removal offinancial assets from the balance sheet

The Company only removes fínancial assets from its balance sheet under one of the following
circumstances:

a) When the contractual rights to íhe cash flows generated by the financial asset have expired.

b) When the Company transfers fínancial assets according to the terms estabiished beiow ana
does not retain a substantial portion ofthe ¡nherent risks or benefits and does not transfer
the control over the transferred assets. A financial asset is only transferred when the
transferring Campa ny:

transfers all of the contractual rights to the cash flows generated by the asset, or
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conserves the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset but assumes

the contractual obligation to reimburse the assignee in full without delay, including
the interest on the reinvestment of such cash flows in highiy liquid fínancial
instruments. In addition, the transfer agreement prohibits the company from selling
or pledging the original financial asset except to guarantee the payment of cash flows
to the assignees ana does not oblígate the Company to pay any sum whatsoever not
previously received from the transferred asset.

Financial asset transfers are evaluated to determine the extent to which the risks and benefits
inherent to the ownership of the financial asset are transferred to third parties. The evaluation
consists of comparing the exposure of the assignor company, before and after the transfer, to the
variation in the amounts and maturities of the net cash flows generated by the transferred asset.

a) The assignor is understood to have transferred the material risks ana benefíts inherent to the
ownership of the transferred asset if the exposure to the variation in the current value of
future net cash flows - i.e., future profit ana loss - decreases considerably as a result of the
asslgnment.

The risks and benefits related to the financial assets are materially transferred to third parties
in the following cases, among others:

(i) Unconditional sale of a financial asset.

(ii) Sale of a financial asset with a buyback clause or a cali or put option for fair value on
the buybackdate.

(¡¡i) Sale ofa financial asset with an out-of-the-money cali or put option that is not likely to
be in-the-money before the expiration ofthe contract.

(iv) Transfer of a financial asset along with an interest rate swap (IRS) in which the
Company is the counterparty, providing that they swap payments are not contingent
upon the credit risk or anticipated return ofthe financial asset.

b) The assignor is understood to have retained the material risks and benefits inherent to the
ownership of the transferred asset if the exposure to the variation in the current value of
future net cash flows does not change in any signifícant way as a result of the assignment.

The material risks and benefíts associated with the ownership of the fínancial asset are
retained in the following cases, among others:

(i) Sale of financial assets with a buyback clause for an equivalent or substantially similar
asset with the same fair value for a fixed price plus interest. Companies are prohibited
from making temporary assignments for amounts higher than the market or fair value
ofthe assigned financial asset, since the difference could be considered unauthorised
direct fínancing of the assignee.
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(ii) A loan agreement in which the borrower is obligated to return the same securities or
substantially simiiar ones with the same fair value.

(¡¡i) The sale of accounts receivable for their fair value or discounted commercial paper
when the assigning company guarantees that the assignee will be compensated for
any credit loss.

(iv) The sale of a financial asset at fair value along with a financial swap when the assigning
Company assumes the market risk of the transferred asset.

(v) Sale of a financial asset with an in-the-money cali or put option that is not likely to be
out-of-the-money before the expiration ofthe contract.

b) Tangible assets

The tangible assets are registered at their acquisition costs. The provisión for amortization is
calculated applying the straight-line method for "Furniture and fittings" and "Technical
installations" and by reducing method ana for "Data processing equipment" ana "Telephone
equipment" based upon the estimated useful life ofthese.

The amortization rates applied in calculating the depreciation of the Ítems included under fixed
assets are the following:

Technical installations

Data processing equipment
Furnitureandfíttings
Telephoneequipment

11%
25%
10%
25%

Repairs and maintenance expenses that do not imply improvements or prolongment ofthe useful
life are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account ofthe year in which they were incurred.

c) Intangible assets

Computer programs are recorded at their acquisition cost, amortizing them on a straight-line basis
overfouryears.

Licences for IT programs acquired from third parties are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred ro acquire them and prepare them for use in a specific application.

Intangible assets prepared employing the Company's own resources are valued at production cost,
including, in particular, direct personnel costs for the project developed.

15



In accordance with the current accounting norm, the development costs are recorded as an asset
iftheycomplywith al! ofthe followingconditions:

A specific and individualized project exists for each research and development activity;

The assignation, charge and time distribution of each projecfs costs should be clearly
established;

Justifíed motives musí always exist to expect the technical success ofthe R & D project;

The economic-commercial profítability ofthe project should be reasonably assured;

The financing ofthe various R & D projects should be reasonably assured to be able to
complete these.

d) Financial liabilities

The standards for classifying financial liabilities on the balance sheet are as follows:

i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

These financial liabilities are valued, both initially and in subsequent valuations, at their fair
value, by imputing the changes, which occur in that value, in the profit and loss account for
the year. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue are recognized in the profít and
loss account for the year in which they arise.

ii) Trading portfolio

This heading includes fínancial liabilities that have been acquired for short term sale and are
parí of a portfolio of fínancial instruments, identified ana managed jointly, with respect to
which recent actions have been carried out in order to obtain short-term gains. They may be
derivative instruments not designated as accounting hedges or arising from the firm sale of
financial assets acquired under repos or loans.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company does not hola fínancial instruments in this
portfolio.

iii) Other financial liabilities at fair value through profít or loss

These are financial liabilities which are hybrid financial instruments in respect of which it is
not possible to reliabiy determine the fair value of the embedded derivative which they
contain.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company does not hold financial instruments in this
portfolio.
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iv) Other financial liabilities at fair value with changes in equity

This ¡ncludes the liabilities associated with fínancial assets classifíed as available for sale that
have been transferred but do not fulfíll the requirements to be written offthe balance sheet.
The financial liabilities associated with such assets are measured, like the assets themselves,
at fair value with changes in equity.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company does not hola financial instruments in this
portfolio.

Registration and valuation offinancial liabilities

Financial liabilities are registered at amortised cost except in the following cases:

Financial liabilities included underthe heading "Trading Portfolio", as "Otherfínancial
liabilities" at fair value with changes in the profit and loss account ana "Other financial
liabilities" with changes in net equity that are valued at fair value. Financial liabilities
hedged through fair value hedges are adjusted by recording those variations in fair
value in relation to the risk hedged in the hedging transaction.

Financial derivatives that have as an underlying capital instrument the fair value which
cannot be determined in a sufficiently objective manner and that are settled by
delivery are valued at their cost.

Variationsinthecarryingvalueoffinancial liabilitiesaregenerallyrecordedwiththebalancingentry
in the consolidated income statement, differentiating between those arising on the accrual of
interest and similar charges, which are recorded under Interest and similar charges, and those
which relate to other causes, which are carried at net value under Gains/ losses on financial
transactions in the profít ana loss account.

Nonetheiess, variations in the carrying value of the ¡nstruments included under fínancial liabilities
at fair value with changes in equity are temporarily recorded under Equity Measurement
Adjustments. The amounts included under Measurement Adjustments continué to form part of
equity until the relevant liability is written off the balance sheet at which time they are written off
against the profit and loss account.

Removal of financia! liabilities from the balance sheet

A financia! liability, or parí of it, should be removed from the balance sheeL when the specific
obligation in the contract has extinguished, because it has been paid, cancelled or has expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of an extinguished financial liability, or a part of this,
and the consideration paid, including any asset transferred other than cash, less any liability
assumed, will be recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.
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A financial liability settled by the Company to a third party, in arder to make this third party assume
the amount of the transferred debt, shall not be extinguished, despite the fací that this
circumstance has been communicated to the creditor, unless the Company becomes legally
released from its obligation, by contractual agreement with the creditor or by judicial or arbitra!
decisión.

When the Company ¡s released by the creditor from its obligation to settle a debt, because it has
been assumed by a third party, but guarantees its payment in the new event of defautt by the new
creditor, the Company:

Remove the amount of the original debt from its balance sheet and recognise a new
fínancial liability for the fair value ofthe obligation assumed by the guarantee.

Record ¡mmediately, in the profit and loss account, the difference between: the
carryingamount in booksofthe original financial liabilitylessthefairvalueofthe new
liability recognised; ana any consideration delivered.

A swap of a fínancial liability between the Company and its creditors, or a modification in its
conditions, will be treated in the accounts applying the following criteria:

When the swap or modification in the conditions of a swap agreement, meaning a
substantial change in the conditions ofthe debt instrument, the entity should remove
it from the balance sheet and recognise a new financial liability. The expenses or
commissions incurred by the entity in the transaction will be registered immediately
in the profit and loss account.

When the swap or modification does not mean a substantial change in the conditions
of the debt instrument, the entity will not remove it from the balance sheet and will
recognise the amount ofthe expenses and commissions as an adjustment to the value
in the accounts of the financial liability, determining these on the basis of the new
conditions.

For these purposes, the contract conditions will be considered as substantially different when the
currentvalueofthecashflowsofthenew financia! liabilityjncludingthenetcommissionscollected
or paid, differs in at least 10% from the current value ofthe cash flows remaining from the original
liability, discounting both at the effective interest rate ofthe latter

e) Current and deferred taxes

The Company forms part of the Group whose main shareholder is the parent company. Likewise,
the Company consolidates fiscally with other companies of the Group, being the entity responsible
for the appiication of the tax regime its main shareholder
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Corporate income tax is recognised as an expense in each year, calculated taking into accountthe
profits before taxes detailed in the annual accounts, corrected for tax criteria differences of a
permanent nature and taking into account the applicable bonifications and deductions. The
deferred or advanced taxes that arise as a consequence ofthe temporal differences derived from
the application of tax criteria in the recognition of income and expenses are reflected on the
balance sheet until they are reversed.

The deferred taxes are calculated, according to the liability method, on the temporal differences
that arise between the assets and liabilities tax bases and their value in the accounts. However, if
the deferred taxes arise from the initiai recognition ofan asset ora liabiiity in a transaction different
to a business combination that at the time of the transaction does not affect either the accounting
results or the taxable base it will not be recognised. The deferred tax is determined applying the
norms and the approved tax rates or on the point of being approved on the balance sheet date and
that are expected to be applicable when the corresponding asset from deferred taxes is settled or
the liability for deferred taxes is paid.

Assets from deferred taxes are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax earnings
will arise against which to compénsate the temporal differences.

Deferred taxes arising from the temporal differences that arise from investments in dependent
companies, associated orjoint venture companies, except in those cases in which the Company can
control the moment when the reversal ofthe temporal differences will occur and, moreover, it is
probable that these will not revert in the foreseeable future.

f) Leases

Finance leases

Leasing contracts are presented based on the economic fund ofthe operation, regardless of
their legal form, and are classified from the beginning as fínancial léase or operating léase.

A léase is considered a finance léase when a substantial portion of the risks and rewards
inherent in ownership ofthe leased asset is transferred.

When the Company acts as lessor of an asset, the sum of the current values ofthe payments
it will receive from the lessee plus the guaranteed residual value, normally the price of
exercising the purchase option at the end of the contrací, will be recorded as third party
financing and therefore included under the heading of "credit investments" on the balance
sheet, in accordance with the nature ofthe lessee.

When the Company acts as lessee, the cost ofthe leased asset is recorded on the balance
sheet, depending on the type of asset involved, and a liability for the same amount is
recorded, which is either the fair value ofthe leased asset or the sum ofthe current value of

all amounts payable to the lessor plus the price ofexercising the purchase option, whichever
is lower. These assets are depreciated using similar criteria to those applied to property, plant
and equipment for own use as a whole.
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Financia! income and expenses resulting from these contracts are credited and charged,
respectively, to the profít and loss account so that the performance remains constant
throughout the life ofthe contracts.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company does not hola this kind of leases.

Operating léase

Leasing contracts that are not considered financial leases are classified as operating leases.

Whenever the Company acts as a lessor, the cost of acquisition of the assets is recorded
under leasing on the epigraph "Tangible assets". Those assets will be depreciated according
to policies adopted by the tangible asset for own use and the ¡ncomes originated by the
leasing contracts will be recognized on the profit and loss account under linear basis.

On the other hand, when the Company acts as lessee, the expenses ofthe léase including
incentives granted, as the case may be, by the lessor, are recorded on a straight-line basis in
the profit and loss account.

g) Recognition of income and expenses

Income is registered at the fair value of the considerations to be received and represents the
amountsto becollectedintheordinarycourseofbusinessoftheCompanyJessreturns, reductions,
discounts and value added tax.

The Company recognises income when the amount ofthis can be valued reliably, and it is probable
that future economic benefíts will flow to the Company and the specific conditions for each one of
the activities is met as is detailed below. It is believed that the amount of income cannot be reliably
valued until all the contingencies related to the sale have been solved. The Company sets its
estimations on historie results, bearing in mind the type ofclient, the type oftransaction and the
concrete terms ofeach agreement.

Income derived from contracts at a fixed price for the supply of advisory services, studies, analysis
and divulgation in the monetary markets área are generally recognised in the period in which the
services are rendered on a lineal base during the length ofthe contract.

!f circumstancss arise that modify the initial ordinary income esíimations, costs or degrees of
compliance, the estimations are revised. The revisions may cause increases or decreases in the
estimatedincomeandcosísandwillbereflectedintheprofitstatementfortheperiod inwhichthe
circumstances that motivated these revisions are known by management.

Incomes from dividends are recognised as income in the profit and loss account when the right to
receive the collection is established. Notwithstanding this, ifthe dividends distributed arise from
profits generated prior to the date of acquisition they are not recognised as income, reducing the
carrying cost in books ofthe investment.
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Non-financial income and expenses are registered in the accounts applying the accrual principie.
Collections and payments deferred in time are registered in the accounts at the amount resulting
from updating fínancially the cash fíows foreseen at the market rate.

g. l) Commissions paid and income

Commissions paid or charged for financial services, regardless of the denomination they
receive contractually, are classified in the following categories, which determine their
allocation in the profit and loss account:

Financial commissions

Are those that are an integral parí ofthe yield or effective cost of a financial operation
and are charged to the profít and loss account over the expected life ofthe operation
as an adjustment to the effective cost or yield of this.

Non-financial commissions

Are those derived from the rendering of services and may arise in the execution of a
service that is performed during a period of time and in the rendering of a service that
is executed as a single act.

Income and expense in respect of fees and similar Ítems are recorded in the income
statement generally in accordance with the following:

Those linked to financia! assets and liabilities valued at fair value with changes in
the profit and loss account and are recorded at time of collection.

Those that relate to transactions or services which are carried out over a period
of time are recorded in the period in which such transactions or services take
place.

Those that relate to a transaction or service which is carried out in a single act are
recorded when the relevant act takes place.

g. 2) Recognition of financial expenses and trading ordinary losses

The financia! expenses are the interests and other costs incurred by an entíty in relation to
flnancing received.

Financial expenses are registered in the profit and loss account as expenses in the period in
which they accrue. However, entities will capitalise fínancial expenses that were accrued
before the assets were put into operationat condition, that are directly attributable to the
acquisitíon, construction or production of qualified assets, and are part of the carrying
amount in books, when it is probable that they will genérate future profits and can be valued
with sufficient reliability
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Extraordinary trading !osses that have to be assumed as a result of incidents in the
negotiation derived from differences between the conditions in the orders received from the
financia! intermediates and those of the negotiation ana liquidation of the operatíon
performed, such as errors in the contracting process or in the terms of this, or other similar
causes, when the result ofthe liquidation implies an economic prejudice imputable to the
mediator of the operation, and not to those issuing the orders, and will be recognised in the
consolidated profít and loss account at the time they occur or are known, ¡ndependently of
the time they are settled.

h) Personnel Expenses

Short-term retribution

Are the remunerations, the payment of which should be attended within the space of
following twelve months from the cióse ofthe exercise in which the employees supplied their
servíces.

They will be valued at the amount that has to be paid for the services received, registering
then in the annual accounts as: a liability for the expense ¡ncurred, after deducting any
amount already settled and as an expense for the period in which the employees had
suppliedtheirservices.

Remuneration based on eauitv instruments

When an entity delivers equity instruments on its own capital to its employees, as the
consideration for the services received, it should apply the following accounting treatment:

If the delivery of equity instruments is done immediately without demanding from
them a specific period ofservices to acquire the title on these, the entity will recognise,
on the concession date, an expense forthe full services received, crediting the amount
to netequity.

If the employees obtain the right to receive the equity instruments once a specific
period ofservice has expired, the expense will be recognised forthe services received
and the corresponding increase in net equity, in the measure that these suppiy services
duringthe period.

Retirement benefít commitments

The collective agreement applicable to the employees of securities firms and the Madrid
stock market establishes certain social welfare obligations. The Company records these
benefíts as an expense in the fiscal year in which they are paid. Adhering to this criterion
rather than an accrual criterion does not have a significant effect on the annual accounts as
a whole.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company had no significant obligations of this kind
towards its employees.
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Termination benefits

These are recognised as a liabilities and expenses only when the Company has made a firm
commitment to termínate the contract of an employee or group of employees before the
retirement date or to pay severance payments as a result of an offer made to encourage the
voluntary termination of the employment contract by employees.

i) Balances offsetting

The debtor and creditor balances originating in transactions that, contractually or because ofa legal
norm, contémplate the possibility of compensation and it is the intention to settle them by the net
amount or to dispose of an asset or to pay a liability simultaneously, will be shown on the balance
sheet at their net amount.

j) Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company is the euro. Therefore, all balances and transactions
denominated in currencies other than the euro are considered denominated in foreign currency.

k) Measurement of foreign currency accounts

The exchange value in euros of the total assets and liabilities in foreign currencies held by the
Company as at 31 December 2019 ana 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

USDollars

Pounds Sterling
Otherforeign currencies

Total

9 859. 98
41 267.54
23 019.40

(104 139.88)
89 186.05
14 084. 94

74 146.92 (868. 89)

The corresponding value in euros of the assets ana liabilities in foreign currency, classifíed by their
nature, held by the Company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019

Loans and receivables (Notes 5 and 7)
Other financial intermediaries in foreign currency (Note 7)
Debts with customers - Creditors foreign currency (Note 11)

Total

237554. 15
13356. 10

(176763.33)

Euros

2018

74 146.92

171126. 87

(171995. 76)

(868.89)
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In the initial recognition, debtor and creditor balances denominated in foreign currency are
converted to the functional currency using the spot exchange rate at the date of recognition,
understood as the exchange rate for immediate delivery. After initial recognition, the following
rules are applied to translate balances denominated in foreign currency to the functional currency:

Monetary assets and liabilities are converted at the yearend exchange rate,
understood as the average spot exchange rate at the date to which the financial
statements refer.

Non-monetary ítems measured at cost are converted at the exchange rate on the date
ofacquisition.

Non-monetary Ítems measured at fair value are converted at the exchange rate ruling
on the date on which fair value is determined.

Incomes ana expenses are converted by applying the exchange rate on the transaction
date.

Nonetheless, the average exchange rate for the period is used for all transactions carried out in that
period, unless there have been signifícant fluctuations. Depreciation/ amortization are converted
at the exchange rate applied to the relevant asset.

Exchange differences arising on conversión ofdebtor and creditor balances denominated in foreign
currency are generally recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account. Nonetheless, in the
case of exchange differences that arise on non-monetary Ítems measured at fair value, for which
the fair value adjustment is recorded under Equity Measurement Adjustments, the component of
theexchange rate relatingto the revaluation ofthe non-monetaryelementis broken down.

1) Discontinued activities

A discontinued activity is a component of the Company, the operations and cash flows oh this
component are clearly distinguishable from the rest, which had been sold or ¡t had been disposed
of by other means or ¡t had been classified as a non-current asset held for sale, and moreover, it
compiles with some ofthe following conditions:

It represents a business line or geographic operations áreas, which are important and
independent.

It is parí of an individual and coordinated plan to sell or dispose by other means of a
business tine or a geographic operations área, which are important and independent.

It is dependent entity acquired for the solé purpose of reselling it.
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The after tax results that arise through the valuation at fair value less the costs of the sale, or
through the disposal by other means, of a component of the entity that has been cfassified as
interrupted activities, are presented in the consolidated profit and loss account as a single amount,
within a sepárate heading from the rest of the income and expenses originated by the
uninterrupted activities.

m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The current obligations of the Company arising as a result of past events, will be considered as
provisions, when these are clearly specified in terms of the nature on the date of the financial

statements, but are indeterminate in terms of their amount or the moment of cancellation, on the
maturity of these and to cancel them, the Company expects to libérate resources that incorpórate
economic benefits. Such obligations may arise due to the following:

A legal or contractual provisión.

An implicit or tacit obligation, the origin of which is located in a valid expectation
created by the Company towards third parties related to the assumption of certain
types of responsibilities. These expectations are created when the Company publicly
accepts responsibilities; these are derived from past behaviour or from company
policies in public domain.

The practically sure evolution ofthe regulation in certain aspects, in particular, norm
projects of which the Company will not be able avoid.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations resulting from past events, the existence ofwhich is
contingent upon the occurrence of one or more future events independent of the Company's
intentions. Contingent liabilities include the Compan/s current obligations, the settlement ofwhich
is unlikely to result in a decrease in resources including economic benefíts or the amount of which,
in extremely rare cases, may not be quantified with sufficient reliability.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are dassifíed as probable when the likelihood ofoccurrence is
greater than that of not occurrence, possible when the likelihood of occurrence is less than that of
not occurrence, and remóte when their occurrence is extremely rare.

The Company includes in the consolidated annual accounts all the significant provisions where the
probability that it will have to meet the obligation is greater than otherwise. Contingent liabilities
are not recognised in the annual accounts but rather are reported unless the oossibilitv of an
outflow offunds including economic benefits is considered remóte.

Provisions are quantified taking into account the best available information concerning the
consequences of the event that originated them and are estimated at each accounting cióse. They
are used to address the specific obligations for which they were recognised and may be reversed in
full or in part when such obligations no longer exist or decrease.
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n) Corporate Income Tax

Corporate income tax is considered an expense and is registered under the heading of corporate
income tax on the profít and loss statement except when the tax arises as a consequence of a
transaction carried directly to equity, in which case the tax is recorded directly in equity, or when
the tax arises from a business combination in which case the deferred tax is recorded asjust another
equíty ítem.

The expense ofthe Income Tax heading is determined by the tax payable calculated with respect
to the taxabie base for the year, once the variations during that year derived from the temporary
differences, the credits for deductions and bonuses and negative tax bases have been considered.
The tax base forthe year may differ from the net result for the year presented in the profít and loss
account since it excludes income or expense Ítems that are taxable or deductible in other years and
ítems that are never taxable or deductible.

4. Risks management

The Company, due to the activity it carnes out, and its consolidable group are bound by current
legislation - Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015, of October 23, approving the consolidated text of the
Securities Market Law; Law 10/2014, of June 26, on the management, supervisión and solvency of
credit institutions; Royal Decree 217/2008 of 15 February; And Circular 2/2014, of June 23, ofCNMV
to have adequate policies and procedures for risk management.

Consequently, the Board of Directors of CIMD, S.A. (the Group parent company) approved a Risk
Management Policy (RMP) which applies to all Group companies.

This policy lays down that risk management, understood as management, control and monitoring
ofthoserisks, istheresponsibil¡tyofthreebodies, eachofwhich has independentfunctions: Board
of Directors of CIMD, S. A., the Company's Board of Directors and the Compliance and Risk
Management Unit.

Risk management is based on the following:

Ist. appropriate planning of equity;
2nd. identifying, assessing and measuring risks;
3rd. establishing risk tolerance limits;
4th. establishing a system of risk control and follow-up; anri
5th. analyze the result on the balance between equity and risks before stress situations.

In accordance with Circular 2/2014 and Capital Requirements Regulation (EU) 575/2013,
concerning the level of exposure and the quality of each kind of risk, the risks identified as
significant for the company are the credit, concentration, market, operational and liquidity risks.
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In order to value exposure to each of these risks and to quantify the requirements, the guidance
contained in both the Guide on Capital Self-Assessment for Investment Services Companies
(hereinafter, GAC), published by the CNMV, and the Guide on Capital Self-Assessment Process
(hereinafter, PAC)/ published by the Bank of Spain, has been applied. The PGR lays down the
following calculation methods:

. Credit risk: Standard method.

. Concentration risk: Simplifíed option of GCA.

. Market risk: Option 1 of GCA.

. Operational risk: Basic Indicator Method.

. Liquidity risk: Simplified option of GCA.

. Other risks: Simplifíed option of GCA.

The tolerance level relates to the limits established by the competent bodies for each risk at
individual level or for all risks as a whole.

Depending on the nature and characteristics of each risk, as well as the activity it affects, the
respective limits are determined, either in absolute values or in percentages. Where appropriate,
the weightings to which these limits are subject will be determined

The following table shows an analysis of the Company's financial liabilities that are settled by the
net amount grouped by maturity in line with the pending time on the date ofthe balance sheet
until the due date stipulated in the contract. The amounts that are shown in the tables correspond
to the cash flows in the contract without discounting. The balances payable within 12 months are
equivalent to the carrying cost in books of these, since the effect of discounting is not signifícant.

The detall ofthe fínancial liabilities as at 31 December 2019 is a follows:

Euros

As at December 31, 2Q19

Temporary asset transfers (Note 11)
Transitorial balances on securities transactions (Note 11)
Rest of liabilities (Note 12)
Pending remuneration payment (Note 12)
Deposits and guarantees received (Note 11)
Intercompany creditors (Notes 11 and 17)
Guara ntees received (Note il)
Loans with Credit Institutions (Note 11)
Equity operations pending settiement (Note 111
Other transactions pending settlement (Note 11)

Lessthan Between 1 Between2 Noset

1 year and 2 years and 5 years Maturity

4960089,16
1 323 877, 65

600 586, 93
548 866, 36
391 768, 87
96 701,40

9 908, 40
5 482, 85
1.427,99

223,62
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The detall ofthe financial liabilities as at 31 December 2018 is a folfows:

Euros

As at December 31, 2018

Transitoria; balances on securities transactions (Note 11)
Restofliabilities(Notel2;
Pending remuneration payment (Note 12)
Deposits and guarantees received (Note 11)
Intercompany creditors (Notes 11 and 17)
Loans with Credit !nst:tut;ORS (Note 11)
Equity operations pending settlement (Note 11)
Other provisions (Note 12)
CurrentTax liabilities (Note 15)
Other transactions pending settlement (Note 11)

Lessthan Between 1 Between2 No set

lyear and2years ^^ndjyears Maturity

9 216 330.31
1 099 672. 52

825 000. 00
4 829 282. 61
1 773 197.03

5 360. 18
1 401. 05

30 000.00
4397. 60

427. 21

Estimation offairva I u e

The fair values of the financial instruments that are commercialised on active markets (such as the
securities maintained to negotiate and those available for sale) are based upon market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used forthe financial assets is the current buyer price.

It is assumed that the carrying cost in the accounts of the credits and debits from commercial
operations approximates to their fair value.

5. Treasury

The "Treasury" statement includes mainly as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 an amount of
2,540,552.74 euros and 2,248,547.76 euros, respectively, correspondingto balances placed within
Bank of Spain which are subject to no restrictions on demand by an amount of 2, 537, 266.30 euros
and 2, 248,363.06 euros, respectively, and held the company in cash an amount of 3, 286.44 euros
and 184.70 euros, respectively, and there are no restrictions on their use.

On cash flow statements effects, the heading "Cash or cash equivalents at the end ofthe year" as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 includes:

2019

Banks, euro current accounts (Note 7)
Treasury

Banks, foreign current accounts (Notes 3. k and 7)

3 768 436. 68
2540552. 74

237554. 15

6 546 543.57

Euros

2018

16050431.00
2 248 547. 75

171 126. 87

18 470 105. 63
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6. Trading portfolio and Available-for-sale finandal assets

The amounts included under the heading "Trading portfolio" at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Debt securities

Financia! assets - Fixed income
Variations Financial assets - Fixed income

Equity instruments
Investment Funds managed by the Group

7 287 954. 46 2 338 909. 81
7 292 007.35

( 4 052.89)

1 943 169. 63

2 343 447.40

( 4537.59)

2 299 350. 40

9 231 124.09 4 638 260. 21

The breakdown of the heading "Debí securities" as at 31 December 2019 ¡s as follows:

Face Maturity
value date

DebtSecurities

Temporary acquisitions of assets
Government bonds

Euros

Cost Market Gains /
value value (Losses)

4862000. 00 30/04/2020 5064311. 43 5062841. 40 (1470. 03)
2000000. 00 30/04/2021 2227695. 92 2225113. 06 (2852. 86)

7 292 007. 35 7 287 954. 46 (4 052. 89)

The breakdown ofthe heading "Debt securities" as at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Debt Securities
Government bonds
Prívate fixed income

Face

value

2 000 000. 00

100 000.00

Maturity
date

Cost
value

Market

vatue

30/04/2021

31/03/2027
2 340 447.40

3 000. 00

2 338 909.81

2 343 447. 40 2 338 909. 81

Euros

Gains/
(Losses)

(1537.59)
(3 000. 00)

(4537.59)

29



The amounts and movements in Debt securities during the years ended 31 December 2019 ana
2018 are asfollows:

Euros

31. 12. 18 Increase Decrease

Gains/
Gains / Losses)

(Losses) (Note 21) 31. 12.19

Debt securities

Government bonds

Temporary acquisitions of
assets

European Investment Bank
Bonds

2338909. 81 ( 110. 000. 00) (3. 796. 75) 2. 225. 113. 06

5. 064. 311. 43 (1. 470. 03) 5. 062. 841. 40

6. 262.882,55 __(6^62. 882.55) (78. 817,05) 78.817.05

2338909. 81 11. 327. 193. 98 (6. 372. 882. 55) (78. 817. 05) 73. 550. 27 7. 287. 954. 46

Euros

31.12.17

Gains/
Gains / Losses)

Increase Decrease (Losses) (Note 21) 31.12. 18

Debt securities

Government bonds

Treasury bilis
Prívate fixed income

3652431. 66 2340447. 40 (3644679. 45)
1001219.48 - (1000000.00)

3 000. 00

( 9289.80) 2338909.81
1179.45 ( 2 398. 93)

( 3 000.00)

_4656 651. 14 2340447. 40 (4644679. 45) 1179. 45 (14688. 73) 2338909. 81

Gains or losses deriving from increases or decreases in the value of negotiable fixed-income
securities at 31 December 2019 ana 2018 are recorded under the heading "Gains/losses on financial
assets and liabilities- Held for trading" in the income statement (Note 21).

The breakdown of the heading "Equity instruments" as at 31 December 2019 ana 2018 are as
follows:

Euros

2019 2018

IMDIFUNDS/Rojo, F. I.
Intermoney Variable Euro, F. l.
Intermoney Gestión Flexible, F. l.
IMDIFUNDS/Verde, F. l.
IMDIFUNDS/Azul. F. I.
IMD!FUNDS/Ocre, F. I.
IntermoneyAttitude, F.L

660 644.98
416765. 05
311965. 00
292 539.36
176 558,94
82 749. 78

1946.52

550711. 01
943 194. 18
294 24R. ?5
267 049. 89
170 027. 92
72 211.07

1 908.08

1943 169.63 2 299 350. 40
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The amounts and movements in Investment Funds managed by the Group during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Investment Funds:

IMDIFUNDS/Rojo, F. I.
Intermoney Variable Euro, F. l.

Intermoney Gestión Flexible, F.i

IMDIFUNDS/Verde, F. l.
IMDIFUNDS/Azul. F. I.

IMDIFUNDS/Ocre, F. l.

IntermoneyAttitude, F. l.

31. 12. 18

550711.01
943 194.17
294 248.26
267 049.89
170027. 92

72 211.07
1 908. 08

2 299 350. 40

31. 12. 17

Investment Funds:

IMDI FUNDS/Rojo, F. I.
Intermoney Variable Euro, F. l.

Intermoney Gestión Flexible, F.l

IMDIFUNDS/Verde, F. l.
IMDIFUNDS/Azul. F. I.

IMDIFUNDS/Ocre, F. I.
IntermoneyAttitude, F. l.

590 141. 90

1182 199.46

277 597. 14
174 358. 83

76018.25
1917. 12

2 302 232. 70

Euros

Increase Decrease

(463 683. 65)

Gains/
(Losses)

(160088.53)

Gains / (Losses)
(Note 21)

109 933.97
97 343.06
17 716.74
25 489.47
6531.02

10538. 71

38. 44

Saldoal31.12.19

660 644.98
416765.05
311965. 00

292539.36
176 558. 94

82 749. 78

1 946.52

(463 683. 65) (160088.53) 267591.41 1 943 169.63

Euros

Increase Decrease
Gains/
(Losses)

317000.00

Gains / (Losses)
(Note 21)

(39 430.89)
(239 005.29)

(22 751. 74)
(10547.25)
(4330.91)
(3 807.18)

(9. 04)

317 000. 00 (319 882. 30)

Saldo al 31. 12.18

550 711.01
943 194. 17

294 248. 26

267 049. 89

170 027. 92

72 211. 07

1 908.08

2299350.40

Gains or losses deriving from increases or decreases in the value of negotiable fíxed-incomp
securities at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are recorded underthe heading "Gains/losses on financial
assets and liabilities- Held for trading" in the income statement (Note 21).

The detail ofthe Investment Funds managed by the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as
follows:

Euros
Asat31December2019
Investment Funds:

IMDIFUNDS/RojO, F. I.
Intermoney Variable Euro, F. l.
Intermoney Gestión Flexible, F.l
IMDIFUNDS/Verde, F. i.
IMDIFUNDS/Azul, F. I.
IMDIFUNDS/Ocre, F. I.

lntermoneyAttitude, F. I.

Numberofsecurities Cost value

57 674. 40
2 807. 08

29 507. 97
27 576. 61
17 574.50
7 500.00

192.65

575 000.00
343 907. 38
317 000.00
275 000.00
175 000. 00
75 000. 00
1 926.50

Market Value

660 644.98
416 765. 05
311965. 00
292 539.36
176 558. 94
82 749. 78

1 946.52

Gains / (Losses)

85 644. 98
72 857. 67

( 5035.00)
17 539.36

1558. 94
7 749.78

20.02

1 762 833. 88 1 943 169.63 180335.75
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Asat31December2018

Investment Funds:

IMDIFUNDS/Rojo, F. I.
Intermoney Variable Euro, F. l.
Intermoney Gestión Flexible, F. l.
IMDIFUNDS/Verde, F. l.
IMDIFUNDS/Azul, F. I.
IMDIFUNDS/Ocre, F. l.
IntermoneyAttitude, F. l.

Euros
Number of securities Cost value

57 674.40
7 147. 08

29 507. 97
27 576. 61
17 574. 50
7 500. 00

192. 65

575 000.00
701 751. 10
317 000. 00
275 000.00
175 000.00
75 000. 00
1926.50

2 120 677.60

MarketValue

550711.01
943 194. 17
294 248. 26
267 049.89
170 027. 92
72 211.07

1 908.08

2 299 350.40

Gains / (losses)

( 24 288. 99)
241 443. 07
(22751.74)
( 7950.11)
( 4972.08)
( 2788.93)
( 18. 42)

178 672.80

During 2019 ana 2018 years, the Company carry out self-buying and selling operations on fíxed-
terms market, being the movement of those operations as follows:

Euros
31. 12. 18 Increase Decrease 31. 12. 19

Selfoperations on Fixed income market 8 395 373 305.80 8 395 373 305.80

8 395 373 305.80 8 395 373 305.80

Euros
31. 12. 17 Increase Decrease 31. 12. 18

Selfoperationson Fixed income market 4668453631. 22 (4668453631. 22)

4 668 453 631. 22 (4668453631. 22)

Those operations of buying and selling has produced benefits to the Company on 2019 ana 2018
years, for a net amount of 2, 501, 184. 11 euros and 3, 280, 491. 78 euros, respectively. Those net
benefits are registered on the heading "Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities (net)
Held fortrading" ofthe Profit Loss account (Note 21).

The breakdown ofthe heading "Available-for-sale financial assets" as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 ¡s as foltows:

At 31 December 2019

Company owned
Sociedad Gestora del Fondo General de
Garantfa de Inversiones, S.A.

Number of

securities

Percentage
Securities

0. 70%

Euros

1 600. 00

1 600, 00
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At 31 December 2018

Company owned
Sociedad Gestora del Fondo General de
Garantía de Inversiones, S.A.

Numberof

securities
Percentage

Securities Euros

0. 52% 1200. 00

1 200. 00

7. Loans and advances to financial intermediaries

The amounts included under the heading "Loans and advances to financia! intermediaries" as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, is as follows:

Euros

2019

Banks, current accounts in euros (Note 5)
Guara ntees and deposits constituted
Otherfinancial intermediaries in euros

Banks, current accounts in foreign currency (Notes 3. k and 5)
Debtors of Group companies (Note 17)
Other own-account operations pending settlement
Debtors in foreign currency (Note 16)

3 768 436. 68
2 455 930. 26

282 799. 17
237 554. 15
28 153.28
15 790.64
13356. 10

6802020.28

2018

16050431.00
2631429. 36

396 088. 06
171 126. 87
23 197. 92

1 591 788.50

20864061. 71

The heading "Banks, current accounts in euros" includes, as of December 31, 2019 ana 2018,
balances at Banco Popular, Credit Suisse and Kas Bank (Note 5) for a total amount of 3, 768, 436. 68
euros and a total amount of 16, 050, 431. 00 euros, respectively, all of which are freely available.

The detaii of "Guarantees and deposits constituted" as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

BME guara ntees
MEFF guara ntees for futures markets
Other bonds

1 551 966. 10
564 000. 00
339 964, 16

1 499 196.88
560 000.00
572 232. 48

2 455 930. 26 2631429.3G

During the year 2019, these current accounts were remunerated at an average interest rate
between -0.70% and 0. 00% (during 2018 between -0. 70% and 0. 10%)

The heading "Banks, current accounts in foreign currency" includes as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, balances at freely available banks for an amount of 237, 554. 15 euros and an amount of
171, 126.87 euros respectively (Notes 3. ky 5).

During fiscal year 2019, these current accounts were remunerated at an average interest rate
between 0.00% and 0.50% (year 2018: between -0.70% and 0. 10%).
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The detall of "Other financial intermediaries in euros" as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, is as
follows:

2019

Customers by operations
Doubtable paycostumers

Impairment of the value of credits for commercial operations

279 53U. 96
25 389. 19

(22 120,98)

282 799. 17

Euros

2018

402898. 65
10039. 57

(16850.16)

396 088. 06

The movement of "Impairment of the value of credits for commercial operations" as of December
31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

31. 12. 18 Increases Decreases (+/-) Others 31. 12. 19

Impairment of the value of credits for

commercial operations (16850. 16) (26 752. 90) 19 884.94 1597. 14 (22120. 98)

(16850. 16) (26 752. 90) 19 884. 94 _1597. 14 (22120. 98)

Euros

31.12.17 ^^ncreases Decreases (+/-) Others 31.12.18

Impairmentofthevalueofcreditsfor

commercial operations (215727.31) (78 056.42) 53133.25 223800.32 (16850. 16)

(215727.31) (78 056.42) _ 53 133.25 223 800.32 (16 850.16)
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8. Loans and advances to customers, Tax and Other assets

The breakdown ofthe heading "Loans and advances to customers" as at December 31, 2019 and
2018, isasfollows:

Euros

2019 2018

Receivables from Group companies - Other(Note 17)
Receivables from Group companies - Tax Effect (Note 17)
Sundrydebtors
Cash advances

5 004 353. 54
1 598 985. 42

36 689. 21
2 500. 00

6 658 564. 91
1324360. 31

93058.51

6642528. 17 8 075 983. 73

On 28 April 2015, the Company's Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting resolved
unanimously to grant its parent company (CIMD, S. A. ) a loan of Euros 3, 750, 000 to enable it to
acquire the company Millennium BCP Gestáo de Activos, S. G. F. I., S.A. The principal terms of the
loan agreement are as follows:

Term/repayment period: six (6) years.

Stipulated interest rate in line with market rates: the Euribor one-year reference rate
published bythe BankofSpain plus 1.50% per annum. Attheend oftheyears 2019 and 2018,
the reference rate for this operation was 1. 39% in both exercises.

The interest rate is reviewable annually, based as a reference on the Euribor one-year
reference rate published by the Bank of Spain every 18 May.

Interest settlement period: loan repayments and interest settlements are to take place
annually, with the borrower being able to repay the loan early without being charged any
fee.

Late-payment interest rate applicable: six per cent (6%).

Similarly on 20 July 2015, the Company's Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting resolved
unanimousiy to grant its parent company (CIMD, S.A. ) a loan of Euros 2, 900, 000 to enabie it to
make the second payment corresponding to the price for the acquisition of the company
Millennium BCP Gestáo de Activos, S. G. F. I., S.A. The principal terms ofthe loan agreement are as
toiiows:

Term/repayment period: the term is six (6) years.

Stipulated interest rate in line with market rates: the Euribor one-year reference rate
published bythe BankofSpain plus 1.50% per annum. Attheendoftheyears 2019 and 2018,
the reference rate for this operation was 1. 39% in both exercises.

The interest rate is reviewable annually, based as a reference on the Euribor one-year
reference rate published by the Bank of Spain every 18 May.
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Interest settlement period: loan repayments and interest settlements are to take place
annually, with the borrower being able to repay the loan early without being charged any
fee.

Late-payment interest rate applicable: six per cent (6%).

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the principal outstanding amount ofthe loan granted to the parent
company amounted to 5,004, 353. 54 euros ana 6, 658, 564. 91 euros, respectively (Note 17).

During the years 2019 and 2018, these loans earned interests of 100, 844. 94 euros and 100, 844. 95
euros, respectively, for the Company. These interests are recognised under "Interest on Loans -
Group Companies" (Notes 17 and 18), which are not collected as of 31 December 2019 and 2018
amounting to 16, 853. 54 and 8, 564. 91 euros respectively.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance recorded in the heading "Tax current assets"
corresponds to the amount pending collection as income tax from the Portuguese branch.

The breakdown of the heading "Other assets" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 ¡s as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Prepaid expenses
Sundrydebtors
PublicAdministration debtor
Credittothestaff

109477.43
12 161. 24

825. 00
36. 22

128 120. 00
38 622.56

825.00
3 235. 23

122 499.89 170802, 79

9. Tangible assets

me breakdown ofthe heading "Tangible assets" as at 31 December2019 ana 2018 is as follows:

2019
Own Use:

Technical Installations

Furnitureandfíttings
Data processingequipments
Tang;ble assets in progress

Telephone equipments

149 045. 5G
20 442. 74
10 404.60

1 408. 03

181 300. 93

Euros

2018

188 770. 48
24 274. 62
?4 020. 27

1 408. 03
176. 75

238 650.15
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The variations during the 2019 ana 2018 years ofthe sundry amounts under the heading "Tangible
assets" and its depreciation are as follows:

Euros

Acquisition cost
Technicai installations

Furniture and fittings
Data processing equipments
Tangible assets in progress
Telephone equipments

Accumulated depreciation
Technical installations

Furniture and fittings
Data processing equipments
Telephone equipments

Net tangible assets

31. 12. 18

324743. 13
118 322.29
776 550. 10

1 408. 03
343 665. 79

1 564 689. 34

( 135 972.65)
( 94 047.67)
( 752529.83)
( 343489. 04)

(1326039. 19)

238 650. 15

Altas

2 767. 95

2 767. 95

(39 724.92)
( 3831.88)
(16383. 62)
( 176. 75)

(60117. 17)

(57 349.22)

Bajas (+/-) Otros 31. 12. 19

324 743. 13
118 322. 29
779 318. 05

1 408. 03
343 665.79

1 567 457. 29

( 175697.57)
( 97879.55)
( 768913. 45)
( 343665. 79)

(1386156.36)

181 300.93

Euros

Acquisition cost
Technicalinstallations

Furniture and fíttings
Data processing equipments
Tangible assets in progress
Telephone equipments

Accumulated depreciation
Technicalinstallations

Furniture and fíttings
Data processing equipments
Telephone equipments

Net tangible assets

31. 12. 17

618 343. 53
316 579.05
983 390. 91

491 436.98

2 409 750.47

173 579.98)
248 441.45)
937423. 84)
436 742.74;

613 562.46

Increase Decrease Reclassifications

3 845.76
8 234. 44
1408. 03

(113 902. 63)
(165 911.90)
(248 586. 59)

(107 350.54)

(179 697.77)
( 36 190,62)

33511. 34

(40 420.65)

31.12.18

324743.13
118322.29
776550. 10

1408.03
343 665.79

13 488.23 (635 751. 66)

64873.69)
11518.12)
60267.58)

3 096. 84)

102 481. 02
165 911. 90
245 1G1. 59
96 350. 54

(222 797. 70) 1 564 689. 34

( 135 972. 65)
( 94 047.67)
( 752529. 83)
í 343 489.04)

(1796188. 01) (139756. 23) 609 905. 05

(126 268.00) (25 846. 61)

(1326039.19)

(222 797.70) 238 650. 15

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 there are fully depreciated tangible assets with an original cost
by amounting to 1, 164, 227. 21 euros and amounting to l, 105.. 31fi. 77 euros, respective!y.

The Company has taken out an insurance policy te cover risks rslating to property, plant and
equipment. The coverage provided by these poiicies is considered to be suffícient.

The Group Holding Company has léase contracts for the offices in which it operates, together with
the other Group companies. It charges the Group entities for the expense relating to the léase of
such offices (Notes 17 and 23).
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On December 31, 2019 and 2018 the forecast of the amounts payable under the concept of léase
to the the parent company ofthe Group, in accordance with the existing contracts, without regard
the future increases in the Consumer Price índex (CPI), or future updates of contractually agreed
revenues are the following:

2019
in one year

Between 1 year and 5 years
196 343.09
687 200. 83

883 543.92

10. Intangible assets

The breakdown of the heading "Intangible assets" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

System applications 35636. 33 81506. 27

3563G. 33 81506. 37

The movement under this heading during the years 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Euros
31. 12. 18 Increase

Acquisition cost
System applications

Accumulated depreciation
System applications

Net intangible assets

Acquisition cost
System applications

Accumulated depreciation
Sysiem applications

Net intangible assets

Decrease 31. 12. 19

996 604.12

996 604. 12

(915 097. 85) (45 869. 94)

996 604. 12

996 604. 12

81 506.27 (45 869.94)

(960967. 79)

35 S36. 33

Euros

31. 12. 17 Increase Decrease 31. 12. 18

1 247 200. 41 3 420. 66 (254 016. 95)

1 247 2GC.41 3 420.66 (254 016.95)

(1022821. 91) (106070. 82) 71. 3794. 88

224 378. 50 (102 650. 16) (40 222. 07)

996 604. 12

99G 604. 12

(915 097. 85)

81 506. 27

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 there are fully depreciated intangible assets with an original cosí
amounting to 831, 350. 75 and 783, 833. 70 euros, respectively.
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11. Financial intermediaries debts and Customers debts

The breakdown ofthe heading "Financial intermediaries debts" as at December 31, 2019 and 2018
is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Temporary assets transfers with financial intermediarles

Guarantees received from Group companies (Note 17)
Deposits received
Guarantees received

Loans with credit institutions

Equity operations pending settlement
Creditors Group companies (Note 17)
Other operations pending settlement (Note 11)

4960089. 16
183 134. 61
108 227.08

9 908.40
5 482. 85
1 427.99
1 250.00

223. 62

268 330. 01
4377010.08

5360. 18
1 401. 05

1652858. 51
427. 21

5 269 743. 71 6 305 387. 04

The operations pending settlement at December 31, 2019 mentioned above were settled during
the month ofJanuary 2020.

The detail of the "Temporary assets transfers with financial intermediaries" as of December 31,
2019 is as follows:

Euros

2019

Temporary assets transfers with third parties 4960089. 16

4960089.16

The detail of the "Temporary assets transfers with third parties" as of December 31, 2019 is as
follows:

Euros

Government bonds

Nominal Price-Assignment Accrued interest Interest rate

4 762 000.00

Expiration
date

4960089. 16 0% 30/04/2020

4 762 000. 00 4960089. 16

At December 31, 2019 and 208, the detall of "Deposits received" is composed by deposits hela with
customers for an amount of 108, 227. 08 euros and 4, 377, 010.08 euros, respectively.
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The detall of "Guarantees received from Group companies" as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is
as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Guarantees received - CIMD, S.V., S.A. (Note 17) 183 134, 61 268 330, 01

183 134, 51 268 330, 01

The detail of "Creditors Group companies" as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Loan IntermoneyTitulización, S.G. F.T., S.A. (Note 17)
Debts with CIMD, S.V., S.A, (Note 17)

1 250.00 1 500 645. 83
152212. 68

1 250.00 1 652 858. 51

On June 21, 2018, Intermoney Titulización, S.G. F.T., granted a credit line to the Company for a
maximum amount of 3,000,000 euros. The conditions of this line are the following:

The duration of the contract is 3 months tacitly renewable up to a maximum of 1 year.

Thestipulatedinterestrate:willbea3month Euribor+0. 50%with a minimum of0. 50%.
The interest will be settled on a monthly basis.

As of December 31, 2019, there was no amount drawn on this credit line. The amount arranged as
of December 31, 2018 is 1, 500, 000.00 euros. The interest accrued in the year 2019 and 2018 for
this line amounts to an amount of 7, 583. 31 euros and 8, 770. 82 euros, which are pending payment
1,250.00 euros ana 645.83 euros, respectively. These interests have been recorded in the "Interest
and similar charges" caption in the income statement (Note 18).

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the detail ofthe "Loans with credit ¡nstitutions" is composed by
interest pending payment with Banco Santander, S.A. and loans held with Kas Bank for the
settiementofoperationscarriedoutin ¡nternationai marketsforan amountof 5,482. 85 euros and
5,360. 18 euros,, respectively.

The operations pending to be settled at December 31, 2018 mentioned above were liquidated
during the month ofJanuary 2019.
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The breakdown ofthe heading "Customers debts" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Balances for securities transactions on transit
Guarantees received (Note 17)
Group companies creditors (Note 17)

1 323 877. 65
100407. 18
95451. 40

9216330.31
183 942. 52
120 338. 52

1 519 736. 23 9520611.35

The breakdown of the heading "Balances for securities transactions on transit" as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Deposits of resident customers

Creditors foreign currency (Note 3. k)
Creditors

Non-resident customer deposits

1126849.10
176763. 33
14 804.25
5 460.97

8 998 093. 99
171 995. 76
43 793. 60

2 446. 96

1 323 877, 65 9216330. 31

12. Provisions and other liabilities

Since 2018, the Company has opened a process in Portugal in relation to the securities brokerage
operations. The opinión ofthe Company and its legal advisors, the possibility ofadditional liabilities
materializing for this reason is remóte and, in any case, the contingency, which could arise from it,
would not significantly affect the annexed Annual Accounts.

The breakdown ofthe heading "Other liabilities" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

fcuros

2019

Accrued wages and salarles
Creditors, invoices pendingto be received
Tax Authorities, IRPF withholdings
Social Security, creditors
SundryCreditors
Tax Authoritíes, VAT pass
Othertax

548 866. 36
363 104. 58
65811.25
65 284. 83
71561. 47
21 744.42
13 080. 38

1 149 453.29

2018

825 000.00
438 718.77
278 004.48
184467.71
100 839. 51
89 141.04
8501. 01

1924672. 52

The " Accrued wages and salaries" caption at December 31, 2019 and 2018 indudes unpaid
employee bonuses, calcuiated as a percentage of the consolidated ¡ncome for the year, and
provisions for additional payments.

The heading "Creditors, ¡nvoices pending to be received" mainly includes the pending invoices
corresponding to the Company's own activity as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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13. Equity

The amounts and movements in equity during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

Share capital

Legal Reserve
Voluntary Reserve

Profitoftheyear
Remaining
Interim dividend (Note 14)

31. 12. 13

15 000 000. 00
15 000 000. 00

3 000 000. 00
2 807 394. 29

5 807 394. 29

(2 249 745. 11)
0. 17

18557649. 35

Transfer between

equity amounts

(2 249 744. 88)

(2 249 744.88)

2 249 745. 11

0. 23

Other Profit of the

movements year

(0. 17)

(0. 17) (915 614. 97)

Euros

31. 12. 19

15 000 000.00

15 000 000.00

3 000 000. 00
557 649.41

3 557 649. 41

(915 614.97) (915 614.97)

17 642 034.44

Share capital

Legal Reserve
Voluntary Reserve

Profitoftheyear
Remaining
Interim dividend (Note 14)

31. 12. 17

15 000 000. 00

15 000 000. 00

3 000 000. 00
2 742 485. 80

5 742 485. 80

939 908. 49

( 875 000.00)

20 807 394. 29

Transfer between

equity amounts

G4 908. 49

64 908. 49

(939 908. 49)
0. 17

875 000. 00

0. 17

Other Profitofthe

movements year

(2 249 745.11)

Euros

31. 12.18

15 000 000.00

15 000 000. 00

3 000 000. 00
2 807 394. 29

5 807 394. 29

(2 249 745.11) (2 249 745.11)
0. 17

18557649. 35

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the share capital is represented by 1, 000, 000 shares of 15 euros
each, fully subscribed and paid up as follows:

Shares

number

C:MD, S. A.
CIMD, S. V., S. A.

999 990
10

1 000 000

2019

Percentage of
shares

99. 999%
0. 001%

100%

The iegai reserve will be registered in accordance to the article 274 ofthe Spanish Corporate Act,
which establishes that, in any case, an equal number to the 10% of the benefít of the exercise will
be destined to this one, until it reaches, at least, the 20% ofthe share capital. This reserve cannot
be distributed and, if it ¡s used to compénsate losses, in case other enough reserves available for
such aim do not exist, it must be answered with future benefits.
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14. Proposed distribution of results

The distribution of results for year the ended 31 December 2019, which is subject to the approval
of the General Shareholders' Meeting and the distribution of results for the year ended 31
December 2018, which was approved by the General Shareholders' Meeting, are as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Profit / (Loss) of the year
Distribution

Losses from previous years

_(915 614. 97) (2 249 745. 11)

(915 614. 97) (2 249 745. 11)

(915 614. 97) (2 249 745. 11)

15. Tax situation

The Parent Company presents a consolidated tax return with CIMD, S. A., CIMD, S. V., S. A,
Intermoney, S. A., Intermoney Gestión, S. G. I. I.C, S.A, Wind to Market, S. A. and Intermoney Valora
Consulting, S.A.

The reconciliation of the differences between the consolidated profit for the years 2019 and 2018
ana the books ana the taxable income is as follows:

Euros

Profits before taxes

Permanent differences

Donations

Penalties

Retirement insurance
Others

Amortizations

Adjustments for loses from Branch in Portugal

Taxable income

Tax quote 25%

Deductions

Income tax

2019

(1 216 578. 10)

88 909. 90

53 964.00

yubi.oo
29068. 56
3 173.66)

281917.05)

19 046.08)

2018

(2930291.90)

(2 375 885.67)

38 715. 00
1 102. 60

13 099.00
8 509.43

( 3 173. 66)
(2 434 138.04)

(1127 668. 20) (5 306 177. 57)

(1 326 544. 39)

(13 550.25)

( 300963. 13) (1 340 094. 64)
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The balance receivable (payable) with the parent in respect of corporate income tax (Note 17) is as
follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Incometax

Payments on accounts and withholdings during the year

Accounts receivable (payable)

300963. 13

( 26 338.02)

274625. 11

1 340 094. 64

( 15 734.33)

1324360. 31

The Income Tax, including the part of tax corresponding to Intermoney Valores, SV, SA - Branch in
Portugal (hereinafter, the Branch), which the Company maintains as of December 31, 2019 and
2018 is distributed as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Intermoney Valores, S.V., S. A.
Others

Intermoney Valores, S. V. - Branch in Portugal Deferred tax assets write-off

(300963. 13) (1340094. 64)
29313.07

630 234. 78

(300963.13) (680 546.79)

On December 31, 2018, the Company has proceeded the deferred tax asset due to the negative
result of Intermoney Valores, S.V. - Branch in Portugal for an amount of 630,234.78 euros because
ofthe closing ofsaid branch (Note l. d).

Likewise, in the year 2018, the Company made an adjustment for the losses of Intermoney Valores,
S.V. - Branch in Portugal considering the fiscal effect of the loss of the year ana the deduction for
the losses of previous years, generating an account to be pay with CIMD, S. A., the parent company
oftheGroup.

A breakdown ofthe headings included under "Taxes" at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is provided
below

Euros

2019 2018

Tax assets:

Current tax assets - Income Tax

Current tax liabilities

23 400.24 23 400. 24

23 400. 24 23 400. 24

4 397.60

Tax assets and liabilities are offset against each other if, at the time, the Company has an
enforceable right to offset the amounts recognised ana its intention ¡s to settle the net amount or
realize the asset and cancel the liabitity simultaneously.
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At 31 December 2018 Corporate Income Tax payable to the Portuguese Tax Authorities totals
4, 397. 60 euros.

The Company's returns for all applicable taxes are open to inspection by the tax authorities.

Due to the different interpretations of which tax legislation is applicable to certain transactions,
there could be contingent tax liabilities. However, in the opinión of the Parent Company's tax
advisors, the likelihood ofthese liabilities arising is remóte and, in any event, the tax debt that could
arise from them would not have a signifícant effect on the accompanying annual accounts.

16. Risk and commitment accounts and Other off-balance sheet accounts

The breakdown of the heading "Bank ana granted guarantees" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
isasfollows:

Euros

2019 2018

Collateral - Euroclear
Guaranteesto MEFF

Guarantees over intermediaries to opérate on markets

2 000 000,00
1 750 000,00

365966. 10

4115966. 10

2 000 000,00
1 250 000.00

809 196,88

4 059 196.88

The nominal value of the futures arranged by the Company at 31 December 2019 and 2018, for an
amount of 1, 180, 643. 18 euros and 1,468, 875. 56 euros, respectively, is recognised under "Financial
Derivatives" under the Company's Contingency ana Obligation Accounts.

The variations during the 2019 and 2018 years offinandal derivatives are as follows:

Euros
31.12.18 Increase Decrease 31. 12. 19

Futuros Eurex 1468875. 56 ^^^70910. 89 (559143. 27) 1180643. 18

1468875. 56 270 910. 89 (559143. 27) 1180643. 18

Euros
31. 12. 17 Increase Decrease 31. 12. 18

Futures Eurex 1 745 575. 63 176205. 90 (452905. 97) 1468875, 56

1 745 575. 63 176 205,90 (452 905.97) 1 468 875.56

The result deriving from operations with futures contracted during 2019 and 2018 amounts are a
positive amount to 288, 283. 39 euros and a negative amount to 132, 589. 87 euros, respectively.
These expenses are recorded under "Results from financial operations - Trading portfolio" in the
income statement (Note 21).
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The breakdown ofthe heading "Security deposits" as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Deposits mortgage debentures
Securities deposits
Third-party titles in the Annotation Center in Account
Fixed-income (own account)

4 128 851 627. 68 3 753 843 000. 00
115 538 750.72 149 479 038.48

4960089. 16
1008.25 3000.00

4249351475.81 3903325038.48

The breakdown of the heading "Managed portfolios" as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as
follows:

2019

National and foreign funds
Fixed income securities
Sha res

Cash at financia! intermediaries

17 538 366. 42
2 939 146.09
2 240 179.89

83 514.02

22 801 206.42

Euros

2018

13558113. 08
2960271. 63
1 559 926. 87

972871,93

19 051183. 51

The breakdown of the number of customers and total assets managed by the Company as at 31
December 2019 and 2018, classifíed by band in the portfolios managed, is as follows:

2019
Tranche

Up to 60 thousand euros
61 thousand euros to 300 thousand euros
301 thousand euros to 600 thousand euros
601 thousand euros to 1,500 thousand euros
More than 1, 501 thousand euros

Customers

24
23
15

5

3

Euros Customers

344 275. 86
3915668. 10
6 214 050.70
4 840 191.5'!!
7 487 020.22

70 22 801 206.42

18
23
10

3

2

2018

Euros

268860. 17
4387018.71
4306 389. 27
2 249 138.40
7839716.96

56 19051183.51
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The breakdown of "Off-balance sheet ítems" which is registered under the Company's
Memorándum Accounts is as follows:

Available not contingent on demand - credit institutions

Own financial and third party financial instruments held by other entities
Customer security sales orders pending settlement

2019

10 000 000. 00
3208411.60

70 444. 61

13278856. 21

Euros

2018

10 000 000.00
2 150 336. 25

19 840.00

12 170 176.25

17. Balances and transactions with Group companies

The breakdown of Intercompany balances as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Euros

Loans and advances tofinancial intermediaries and customers (Note 7)
CIMD, S. V., S. A.

CIMD(Dubai), Ltd.

Intermoney Gestión, S.G. I. I.C., S.A.

Intermoney Titulización, S. G. F. T., S. A.

IM Gestáo de Ativos, S. G. O. I.C., S.A. (formerly called IM Gestáo de Ativos, S. G. F. I., S.A.)

Loans and advance to customers (Note 8)
CIMD, S.A. - Loans granted to related parties
CIMD, S.A. -TaxEffect

2019

28 153. 28

16 787.24

3 138. 40

7515. 00

712.64

2018

23 197. 92

3 138.40

15 125. 00

712. 64
4 221.88

6603338.96 7982925.22

5 004 353. 54 6 658 564. 91

1598985. 42 1324360. 31

Debts with financia! intermediaries (Note 11)
CIMD, S.V., S. A.

IntermoneyTitulización, S.G. F.T., S.A.

Debts with customers (Note 11)
CIMD, S.A. - Deposits received

CIMD, S.A. - Other accounts payable

Euros

2019 2018

184384.61 1921188.52
183 134. 61

1 250.00
420 542. 69

1 500 645. 83

195 858. 58 304 281. 04

100407. 18 183942. 52

95 451.40 120 338.52
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The breakdown of Income and expenses with Group companies as at 31 December 2018 and 2018
is as follows:

Euros

Fees and commissions income
CIMD, S. V., S. A.

Intermoney Gestión, S. G. I. I. C., S. A.

IM Gestáo de Ativos, S.G.O. I. C., S.A. (formerly called IM Gestáo de Ativos,
S.G. F. I., S.A.)

Commissions paid
CIMD, S. V, S. A.

Interest and similar income (Notes 8 and 18)
CIMD, S. A.

Interest and similar charged (Notes 11 and 18)
IntermoneyTitulización, S. G. F.T., S.A.

2019

61 000. 00
36 000. 00
25 000. 00

32. 20
32. 20

100 844.94
100 844.94

7 583. 31

2018

341 229.22
38 935. 40
25 000. 00

277 293, 82

703. 83
703. 83

100 844.95
100844.95

8 770.82
7583. 31 8 770. 82

The breakdown of "General expenses" with CIMD S.A. as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as
follows:

Euros

2019

General expenses

CIMD, S.A.

Rents over assets and installations

Other services of independent professionals
Insurance

Supplies
Communications

Otherservices

382 358.75

382 358. 75

231 688. 44
98 730. 00

21 256. 81

18 257.50
9413.04

3012. 96

2018

397 177. 92

312 747.35

250 925. 24

28433. 70

20 000, 89
9 650. 23
3 737. 29

IM Gestao de Ativos, S.G.O.I.C., S.A. (formerly called IM Gestao de Ativos,
S. G.F. I., S.A.)
Reparations and conservation
Communications

Supplies
Other services

Other tributes

131 369. 07

78 724. 45

33 994.71
14 047.89

3 594. 31

1 007. 71
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18. Interest margin

The breakdown ofthe heading "Interest margin" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follow:

Euros

2018 2017

Interest and similar incomes

Loan interests - Group companies (Notes 8 and 17)
Other interest and incomes

Interest and similar charges
Otherfinancial expenses
Loan interests - Group companies (Notes 11 and 17)

10/232.12 101 590.57
100 844.94

6 387.18

(50403.73)

100 844. 95
745. 62

(62 628. 96)
(42 820.42)
( 7583.31)

(53 858. 14)
( 8 770.82)

56 828. 39 38961. 61

19. Fees and commissions incomes

The breakdown ofthe heading "Pees and commissions incomes" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
is asfollow

Euros

2019 2018

Equity Operations - Foreign markets
Equity Operations - Secondary markets
Fees for services
Others

Derivatives operations - Foreign markets

2 369 886. 16
856 847.30
831 639. 04
453 974.44

2 764 177, 78
1 405 546. 00
1 149 091.33
1 017 788.74

4912.83

4512346.94 6341516. 68

20. Fees and commissions expenses

The breakdown ofthe heading "Fees and commissions expenses" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
is as follow

Euros

2019

Processing and execution of clients orders
Commissions transferred ío other entities
Trading losses
Commissions paid on custodyand clearance markets
Othercommissions

1 10d 110.08
2b/ S12.21
11 934.93
10 537. 35

1394394. 57

2018

1 337 106. 86
361 548. 38

29563, 61
14721.33
18212. 56

1 761152. 74
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The heading of "Trading losses" incurred by the Company in 2019 and 2018 break down as follows:

2019 2018
Market Numberof cases Euros Number of cases Euros

Equity
Derivatives

140 11 934. 93 602
4

28 693. 61
870. 00

11934.93 60G 29 563. 61

21. Gains and losses on fínancial assets and liabilities (net) - Held for trading

The detail ofthe heading "Gains and losses on finandal assets and liabilities (net) - Hela fortrading"
as of 31 December 2019 ana 2018 are as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Purchases - sales on Fixed income (Note 6)
Equity instruments - Funds managed by the Group (Note 6)
Others

Marketable instruments - Fixed income (Note 6)
Purchases - sales of operations on hedging derivatives (Note 16)
Purchases - sales of operations on trading derivatives

2501184.11
267 591.41
14 705. 69
(3796.75)

(288 283.39)

3280491.78

(319882.30)
812.08

(14688.73)
132 589. 87

655. 80

2491401.07 3 079 978. 50

22. Personnelexpenses

The breakdown of the heading "Personnel expenses" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

2019

Salarles andwages
Social Security
Other personnel costs
Severance pay by dismissals

3 489 702.02
660623.98
157 752. 82
65 903.22

4373982.04

Euros

2018

4 537 084. 63
959 284. 64
166 180. 77

1162 043. 28

6 824 593. 32
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23. Other administrative expenses

The breakdown ofthe heading "Other administrative expenses" as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
is as follows:

Euros

2019 2018

Communication

Rental and ¡nstallations

Conservation and repair
Other services of independent professionals
Public Relations and Publicity
Representation and displacements
Other services

Taxand contributions

Donationsand penalties
Banking services
Supplies
Insurance

1 049 900.24
280 343.06
264 317. 51
220 864. 05
206265. 04
87445. 29
87338. 17
66 706. 91
54 587.78
32 725. 43
22 091. 58
21256. 81

1 284 673. 88
501 788. 37
416 133. 80
461 423.85
234 202.87
114 314.81
103 003. 62
73203. 11
92 854.14
47 166, 03
43 953. 00
28 433. 70

2 393 841.87 3 401 151. 18

24. Information on the average payment period for trade payables. Third additional provisions
"Duty of information" of Law 15/2010, of 5 July 2010

According to the second final provisions of Law 31/2014, of 3 December 2014, which amends the
third additional provisions of Law 15/2010, of 5 July 2014, amending Law 3/2004, of 29 December
2004, on combating late payment in commercial transactions, and in relation to the information to
be stated in notes to annual accounts regarding deferrals of trade payabtes in commercial
transactions calculated on the basis ofthe Decisión ofthe Spanish Accounting and Auditing Institute
("ICAC") dated 29 January 2016, the average payment period for trade payables made by the
Company in 2019 is as follows:

2019 2018
Days Days

23. 81
24. 38
15. 07

9. 04
8. 56

16. 96

Euros Euros

2 661 732. 70
173 763. 64

2 709 242. 50
164 739. 54

Average payment period fortrade payables
Ratio paid operations
Ratio of pending payment transactions

Total payments
Total pending payments

25. Other information

The members of the Company's Board of Directors have received no amounts for their status as
such. Nonetheless, the members of the Company's govemhg body and senior management
personnel have accrued salaries and remuneration during 2019 and 2018 amounting to 327
thousand euros and amounting to 356 thousand euros, respectively.
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At 31 December 2019 and 2018 no advances or loans have been granted to such members ofthe
Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors ofthe Company at 31 December 2019 consists oftwo men and a woman.

During fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the Company paid a total amount of 3 thousand euros, in both
exercises for civil liability insurance premiums. These premiums correspond to the civil liability
insurance policy that covers the Administrators and Managers before several classes of potential
claims.

The external auditors' fees corresponding to the audit of the Company for the 2019 ana 2018
annual periods amounted to 31 thousand euros and 45 thousand euros, respectively, having
provided other services for a total amount of 13 thousand euros and 39 thousand of euros.
respectively. The Company has not paid fees to other companies under the name
PricewaterhouseCoopers for other services during the years 2019 and 2018.

The Company's overall operations are subject to laws related to environmental protection
("environment laws") and the health and safety ofthe workers ("safety at work laws"). The Group
considers that the requirements ofthese laws are substantially met and that they have procedures
designed to promote ana guarantee compliance therewith.

The Company has adopted the appropriate measures in relation to the protection and
improvement ofthe environment and to minimize, if applicable, any environmental impact, thus
complying with current legislation in this respect. During the years 2019 and 2018, it was not
deemed necessary to book any provisions for environmental risks or charges since there are no
contingencies related to the protection or improvement ofthe environment.

There are no significant contingencies related to the protection or improvement of the
environment.

At 31 December 2019, the Company's directors and persons related to them, as described in Article
231 of the Spanish Companies Act, declare that they are not involved in any situations of conflicts
of interest which should have been reported in accordance with Article 229 of said Act.

26. Client attention department

Further to order ECO 734/2004, of 11 March, the Mead ofíhe Cusíomer Services department has
received no complaints or claims from the compan/s customers from its formation to the end of
2019

27. Subsequent events

Since December 2019, COVID-19, a new strain of Coronavirus, has spread to many countries,
including Spain. This event signifícantly affects economic activity worldwide and, as a result, may
affect the Entity's operations and financial results. The extent to which the Coronavirus will impact
our results will depend on future developments that cannot be reliably predicted, including actions
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to contain or treat the disease and mitígate its impact on the economies of the affected countries,
amongothers.

28. Explanation added for translation to English

These fínancial statements are presented based on accounting principies generally accepted in
Spain. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted
accounting principies in Spain may not conform with generally accepted accounting principies ¡n
othercountries.
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INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

DIRECTOR'5 REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

. ECONOMIC AND COMMERCIAL ENVIRONMENT

The period 2019 has been a complicated yearforthe credit business (Corporate Fixed Income) with
scarce value for the investor and with, practically, every fund which falls in this category, in
negative.

The European Central Bank maintains and perpetuates the monetary stimulus policy, even more so
given the economic and growth slowdown in the Euro Zone. This policy, which a priori should
enhance the access to cheap financing ofthe economies to finance their growth, has little marginal
utility in the prívate sector and only serves to maintain the debt at zero cost ofthe Treasuries and
States while waiting for the miracle of recovery, which will take time (see Japan 1990s).

As an asset, it is in the Variable Income where the bulk ofthe investment capacity is concentrated,
despite a further drop in volumes of20% campa red to 2018, with the Spanish Stock Exchange losing
the most volume of all in our environment.

In Fixed Income there have only been opportunities to find profítability in the Italian financial sector
and in the auto sector, which has suffered the consequences ofthe US-China tariffwar, although
finally the truce and rationality have prevailed.

In this context, the risk premium of Germany has been maintained at averages of 80 basis points
(bp) with a maximum of 128bp in January and a minimum of 60bp in July. The profitability ofthe
Spanish 10-year bond, which started the year at 1. 51%, reached 0. 28% in August with an average
of 0. 65%. The Treasury curve in Spain continued in negative until the fifth year, which restricts
investment in the short terms.

Average volatility has been at 13.5%, cióse to that ofthe previous year but far from 23% in 2016
and earlier. The greatest impact on Equities comes from the Mifid II regulation. The obligation to
sepárate analysis (and charge for it) from the execution of orders has resulted in an Analysis Área -
structural cost center - necessary ana that it is impossible to maintain neither with direct income
nor with those derived from the execution of orders. If we add to this the collapse of volumes and
executíon commissions, the resutting is a loss-based service whose survival will depend on the
consolidation of the sector - expected - or the increase in volumes - not expected -.

In Fixed Income the same reguiation which supposedly goes in favour of the transparency and the
best execution, with its requirements of publication prior and post trade.. have not achieved higher
value nor higher transparency.



ACTIVITY OF INTERMONEY VALORES, S.V., S.A

Intermoney Valores, S.V., S.A is still a reference in the Fixed Income Market although this year it has
remained at average margins of the 2018 level (-1%) but the operative/rotation recurrence has
been sensibly lower (-19%).

The Equity Intermediation is not experiencing any consolidation despite registering operating losses
of more than 50% ofthe Sector. The excess of installed capacity does not predict a good 2020.

Throughout 2019, the Analysis Área has held numerous working breakfasts with investors, trips,
presentations ana reports on all coverage (more than 40 listed companies) maintaining goodwill
for investors and corporate access to companies for monitoring in the 4 locations (Madrid,
Barcelona, Bilbao and Andorra).

The results after Tax for the fiscal year 2019 have been a loss of 916 thousand euros.

RISKAND UNCERTAINTIES

In Fixed Income, our generation capacity can keep suffering faced with a low operative recurrence,
a very narrow margins ana exchange rates ana credit differentials which contribute very little value
to the assets. Nevertheless, we foresee a year oftransition for the Fixed Income.

Despite the Variable Income asset having the longest way to go in campa rison to the Fixed Income,
the sustenance of the model goes through an adjustment in the number of intermediation
participants in the Market ana, additionally, an ¡ncrease in the volatility which should come along
with higher negotiation volumes.

PREVISIONS FOR THE 2020 YEAR

For the 2020 year we musí be capable of investing into less liquid assets where the contribution of
value can be monetized, such as those that come from the origination and structuring capacity of
Intermoney Titulización, SGFT, SA. We will maintain our commitment to grow in the number of
clients, especially in the segment where our presence is least: Prívate Banks.

Although in 2019 we could not land more than in a primary operation, we do hope that in 2020 we
will have the possibility of being in some prívate or public placement in which we are working with
international investors. The year will be diffícult again

Treasury shares

During 2019, the Campa ny neither owns nor has carried out any business with treasury shares.



Research and development and the environment

In the course of 2019, no investment in R&D has been made and the Company has also not made
any environmental investments. Likewise, it has not been considered necessary to record any
provisión for environmental risks and expenses, since there are no contingencies related to the
protection and improvement ofthe environment.

Report on risk management

Considering its activity, the use offinancial instruments bythe Company ¡s intended to achieve its
social object, adjusting its objectives and policies for managing market, credit and liquidity risks in
accordance with current legislation.

Average Supplier Payment Period Information

During the 2019 financial year, the Company has not made payments that would accumulate
deferments greater than those legally established other than those described in the annual
accounts report. In addition, at the end of 2019, the Company has no outstanding balance
accumulating a deferment greater than the statutory period established.

Subsequent events after the reporting period

As detailed in Note 27 ofthe annual accounts, since December 2019, COVID-19, a new strain of
Coronavirus has spread to many countries, including Spain. This event significantly affects economic
activity worldwide and, as a result, may affect the Entity's operations and financial results. The
extent to which the Coronavirus will impact our results will depend on future developments that
cannot be reliably predicted, inclLidingactionsto contain ortreatthe disease and mitígate its impact
on the economies ofthe affected countries, among others.



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

PRESENTATION OF THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND DIRECTOR-S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2019

In compliance with the provisions ofArticle 192 "Annual Report of Investment Services Companies",
of Royal Legisiative Decree 4/2015 of 23 October, approving the revised text of the Securities
Market Act, this document presents the information required at December 31, 2019.

Description:

Nature:

Localion:

Turnover:

Number of full time employees1-

Gross profit before tax:

Tax on profít:

Subsidies or public aid received:

Return on assets:

INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

Investment services Company

Madrid (Spain)

4, 512 thousand euros

45

(1, 217) thousand euros

301 thousand euros

None

-0. 02 %

It does not include interns.



INTERMONEY VALORES, SOCIEDAD DE VALORES, S.A.

ANNUAL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS SERVICES COMPANIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2019

The Company's Board of Directors of Intermoney Valores, Sociedad de Valores, S.A., presented the
annual accounts and Director's report for the year ended December 31, 2019 in its meeting held
on March 12, 2020, in which Board Memberssigned.

Mr. Javier de la Parte Rodríguez Mr. Emanuel Guilherme Louro da Silva

Mrs. Beatriz Senís Gilmartín
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